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Bank Profile
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OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau) is a wholly owned-subsidiary
of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong). Previously known as
Banco Weng Hang, S.A., OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau) was
established in 1941 and has about 500 employees.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong), the former Wing Hang
Bank, Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Bank on 15
October 2014. OCBC Bank is the second largest financial services group
in Southeast Asia by assets and the longest established Singapore bank.
It has an international presence of over 630 branches and representative
offices across 18 countries and territories. OCBC Bank’'s market-
leading subsidiaries include Great Eastern Holdings, the oldest and most
established life insurance group in Singapore and Malaysia; Lion Global
Investors, one of the largest private sector asset management companies
in Southeast Asia; and Bank of Singapore, which has gained increasing
industry recognition as Asia’s Global Private Bank.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong) together with its subsidiaries
and affiliated companies, offers a comprehensive range of commercial
banking products and services and other financial services such as
consumer financing, share brokerage and insurance, among others. It has
a network of 95 branches and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and China,
including the 13 branches operated by OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
(Macau).

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau), as part of the OCBC group of
companies, offers customers an augmented banking network, enhanced
market access and an expanded range of products and services to meet
their personal and business financial needs.
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2014 Results in Brief

LAPI 8T Tl 3R (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
#hn, Crd)
Increase/
(Decrease)
2EEH FOR THE YEAR 2014 2013 %
R A58 18 5 A Profit after taxation 332,500 356,296 (6.7%)
% & Dividends 120,000 48,000 150.0%
REKTE AT YEAR END 2014 2013 %
f& =R fe e 4B 5E Total equity 3,077,641 2,572,192 19.7%
EIFR Total deposits 30,286,129 26,854,154 12.8%
Z2EEX Advances to customers 21,950,541 19,501,200 12.6%
BEE Total assets 35,587,868 31,471,040 13.1%
[z RATIO % %
AN B A LY R Cost to income ratio 44.3 44,7
FHHEER KK Return on average assets 1.0 1.2
FHARRE & B E Return on average shareholders’ funds 11.8 15.2

(P:\jobs\04_ar\20150798 OCBC Wing Hang Bank AR2014\03 OCBC WHB AR2014_Brief)
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Five Year Financial Summary

F TR MOP thousand 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
RERE Shareholders’ fund 1,602,555 1,849,311 2,122,248 2,572,192 3,077,641
@R Total deposits 17,373,682 19,157,372 23,267,179 26,854,154 30,286,129
BEER Advances to customers 13,275,519 13,675,685 16,269,604 19,501,200 21,950,541
BEE Total assets 20,469,947 21,803,350 25,994,279 31,471,040 35,587,868
BERA Operating income 482,807 492,079 526,039 638,308 732,503
EEI M Operating expenses (209,883) (223,021) (241,789) (285,023) (324,290)
B 78 18 5 ) Profit after taxation 242,158 246,873 271,648 356,296 332,500
% 8 Dividends (231,600) (42,000) (84,000) (48,000) (120,000)
[ Ratio 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
B R Loan to deposit ratio 76.4 71.4 69.9 72.6 72.5
BEARTE B & Capital adequacy ratio* 11.8 13.0 12.1 12.8 12.5
PR BT A LY & Cost to income ratio 435 453 46.0 44.7 443
SRl EEES Return on average assets 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.0
FHREESBIRE  Return on average

shareholders’ funds 15.3 14.3 13.7 15.2 11.8

* RRFEMERRZERMAE
Calculated in accordance with the requirements set out by the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau.

4 EB/EXTHRITRHOERDT « 2014FFH
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Net Profit / Return on Average Shareholders’ Fund
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Bank Information
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Shareholders
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Incorporated in Hong Kong

Board of Directors
Chairman
Mr NA Wu Beng

Directors

Ms KNG Hwee Tin

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen
Mr CHAN Han Wo

Supervisory Council
Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah

General Meeting Committee
Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley
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Chairman’s Statement
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Mr. NA Wu Beng

Chairman

Macau’s economy slowed down considerably in 2014 as the gaming
revenue retreated in the last two quarters of 2014. Real GDP in Macau
contracted by 0.4% overall, with fourth quarter contraction at a
substantial 17.2%. Despite the difficult economic environment, the Bank
achieved satisfactory growth across all business divisions. Operating profit
increased 8.9% to a record MOP385 million as compared to MOP354
million in 2013. Total assets amounted to MOP35,546 million while
shareholders’ fund amounted to MOP3,098 million. Compared to 2013,
they represented an increase of 13.1% and 20.4% respectively. Return
on average assets and average shareholders’ funds were 1% and 11.6%,
respectively.

In the second half of 2014, the Bank was acquired by OCBC Group. As
a result, the name of the Bank was changed to OCBC Wing Hang Bank
Limited on 1 October 2015. OCBC, with a history of 82 years, is the
second largest bank in Singapore and Southeast Asia. Its operations span
18 countries and regions and it has achieved excellent results in many
areas. It is rated AA- by Standard & Poor’s and Aal by Moody’s. The Group
currently employs more than 29,000 staff members. The Bank will benefit
from OCBC Group's extensive network in Southeast Asia and excellent
products. With the Group’s support and our understanding of the needs
of customers, we are better equipped to help them expand their business
and manage their wealth.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2014 7
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Chairman’s Statement

¥WBAHE  AMIERPFRRERMS ER S
BRI R o NITEMKINE L ZIHE EEE A
BHREER  FATFAZGERIERI12.8%E
SRPIEE3031BIT - MEBF BB MRS EIIM
11.8%IEBREAME2181ETT - B BT Rk
HEFFIET2.0% 2 HEEEKT - ERFERKBEZK
ART8E  BREFERE HBRTEESH
TERE ABERBBEE - AWK ERM
B5% - ATAEREFPRHMGNERER B
LR B EB RS EBIEER « XTTEEHERS
FABERMAEFE  RERMBHEAE
PRUNFENXR FZFEFIER29% - #AE
FERRY - NMTEEERDEAEFER R
014FERF 2 PR EFNBERL RERHEE
HEIKH0.12% ° RIS EHERAEETE
AR - EREREATEBEOMEZRERE BN
EEEREE B B RS AR 2 B IR A8 7
FRTRNTE o

IEFBRATE @ RITRFIBEXBER - 81EE
B BRE - INE - REET EERYREER
BE - AITER015FF—FHE—FRAB L
BEHERGZWEE BORMRRFERENTE -
MM Bl FriR - AT EREFAEGRTEER
R EERFENLER REPRE—RNVE

EEEM

KITRBEITRDTHE B13M - #E2014F
12AK » ANITABRPIEEER497R BT -

8 E/XFRITROBABRDT « 20145 5K

Turning to performance, the Bank recorded strong growth in both
customer deposits and loans. The launch of a number of successful
campaigns to promote new savings products helped the Bank achieve
deposit growth of 12.8% to MOP30.3 billion. Loans to customers grew at
a similar rate of 11.8% to MOP21.8 billion. The loan-to-deposit ratio was
maintained at a healthy level of 72.0%. Loan demand was broad-based
across various business areas including residential mortgages, wholesale
and retail trade, corporate as well as auto and consumer lending. The Bank
recorded satisfactory growth in residential mortgages despite declining
property transaction volume by tailoring loan packages to our target
customers. Furthermore, the Bank continued to introduce differentiated
car and consumer finance products to satisfy the rising needs of our
increasingly affluent customers. This business area, as a result, recorded
a 29% growth. Despite the remarkable loan growth, the Bank's asset
quality remains sound. As at year-end of 2014, the ratio of impaired
loans to total loans was at the usual low level of 0.12%. Owing to our
prudent underwriting standards and effective credit risk monitoring, the
Bank’s loan portfolio could withstand even a severe economic downturn
according to the results of various stress tests that we regularly conducted.

In the area of non-interest income, the Bank recorded satisfactory
growth in all major areas, including credit card, stock brokerage, foreign
exchange, insurance and wealth management. The Bank has improved
the functionality of its online stock trading platform to meet customers’
sophisticated needs in the first quarter of 2015. As mentioned before,
the Bank will also capitalize on the wealth management expertise of
OCBC Group in providing top-notch wealth management products to our
customers.

The Bank currently has 13 branches. As at the end of December 2014, the
Bank employed 497 people in Macau.
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As a well-established financial institution with a long history in Macau,
we have a strong sense of commitment in fulfilling corporate social
responsibility (“CSR"”) and ensuring that it is part of our everyday
operation. Our dedicated CSR Committee and its support teams are
responsible for the promotion, support and implementation of CSR
activities, and attaining our targets in governance, environmental and
community responsibilities. In 2014, 150 members of our Volunteer
Service Team devoted 1,202 community service hours for a number of
worthy causes. The Bank is an active partner of ORBIS and Caritas in
Macau to support their mission of helping the poor and needy in the
society. Aside from issuing the ORBIS and Caritas Charity Credit Cards
and donating 0.3% of spending on each transaction to ORBIS and Caritas
Macau, the Bank also sponsored and supported the charity activities of
these two organizations. During the year, we were one of the corporate
ambassadors of ORBIS’s “Action for Sight” in support of their sight-saving
projects worldwide. Our Volunteer Service Team also vigorously supported
the “Short-term Food Assistance Service” of Caritas Macau and the “Rice
Selling” campaign organized by Oxfam. Looking ahead, we will continue
to devote resources and efforts in community services, and contribute to
the building of a harmonious society.

Looking ahead, operating environment will continue to be challenging
in 2015. There is a risk of capital flight as the Federal Reserve will likely
begin its long-awaited interest rate hike cycle soon. In addition, gaming
revenue is expected to record negative growth in the coming months
and the local economy has to get used to the “new normal” of China’s
slower but sustainable growth policy. Macau will have to promote itself
into a multifaceted entertainment center and depend less on the volatile
gaming sector. We envisage Macau, after some short-term structural
adjustments and with Hanggin Island as a complement, will undergo a
more sustainable growth path when the few new mega-resorts rich in
non-gaming elements open in the next two years.

As the new Chairman of the Bank, | was most impressed by the dedication
demonstrated by our staff members, as well as the close relationship
they have developed with our customers, some through generations.
Therefore, | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our colleagues for their effort through the years. And on
behalf of the Board of Directors, | would also like to thank our customers
for their continued support and trust.

NA Wu Beng
Chairman

18 March 2015

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2014 9
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Report of the Supervisory Council
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The balance sheet and income statement of the Bank (the “financial
statements”) are prepared in accordance with Macau banking laws and
audited by KPMG. In the opinion of the Supervisory Council, the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank
as at 31 December 2014, and of the profit for the year then ended.

President of Supervisory Council
LO Wai Ching Maggie

18 March 2015

(P:\jobs\04_ar\20150798 OCBC Wing Hang Bank AR2014\07 OCBC WHB AR2014_Supervisory)
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited,
Hong Kong (“OWH"), which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC"). OWH has
complied with Supervisory Policy Manual on Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority. The Bank has also applied the internal control
objectives, principles and components as set out in “The Internal Control
Guidelines for the Authorised Credit Institutions” issued by the Monetary
Authority of Macau throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

Board of Directors

Following the acquisition of the Bank by OCBC, there were changes in
the directors of the Bank during the year. Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick, Mr
FUNG Yuk Sing Michael and Mr HO Chi Wai Louis resigned as directors
on 18 August 2014, while Mr NA Wu Beng and Ms KNG Hwee Tin were
appointed as directors on the same date.

After the changes, members of the Board are as follows:.

Mr NA Wu Beng (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr LEE Tak Lim (Director & General Manager)

Mr CHAN Han Wo Herbert (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Ms KNG Hwee Tin (Non-Executive Director)

Mr Frank John WANG (Non-Executive Director)

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen (Non-Executive Director)

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley (Non-Executive Director)

The following directors are senior executives of OWH.

Mr NA Wu Beng, Chief Executive, Mr Frank John WANG, Deputy Chief
Executive, Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen, Senior Deputy General Manager
and Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley, Chief Financial Officer.

All Directors have no relationship with each other.

During the year, thirteen board meetings were held. The 2014 Annual
General Meeting was held on 20 March 2015.

Throughout the year, the Board maintained a balanced composition
that provided strong and consistent leadership conducive to making
and implementing decisions effectively and appropriately. Each Director
possesses skills and experiences appropriate to the business of the Bank.
The Board also includes personnel with the appropriate accounting and
other expertise necessary for the smooth running of the Bank. During
the year, all directors of the Bank received regular briefings on economic
updates, the Bank’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters as well as new rules and regulations and changes to
rules and regulations applicable to the Bank.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2014 11
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties:

develop and review the Bank’s policies and practices on corporate

governance;

e review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

e review and monitor the Bank’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; and

e develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors of the Bank.

Supervisory Council

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was no change in the
composition of the Supervisory Council. The Supervisory Council satisfies
the requirement stipulated in the Macau Commercial Code that one of its
members is a Registered Auditor in Macau.

The Supervisory Council of the Bank has clear terms of reference which
are regularly reviewed (the latest version was approved by the Board
on 22 March, 2012). Its principal functions are to independently review
and monitor the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system of the Bank; oversee the audit
process; and perform all other duties and obligations mentioned in the
law and in the articles of association of the Bank. The Supervisory Council
reviews the audit coverage and approves the internal audit plan, reviews
the work, findings and recommendations of the internal auditors. The
Supervisory Council also discusses issues raised by the external auditors
and the regulators, and ensures that recommendations are properly
implemented.

Members of the Supervisory Council are as follows:

Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie (President)
Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius (Supervisor)
Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah Stephen (Supervisor)

Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie is the Chief Internal Auditor, and Mr. LEUNG
Chiu Wah Stephen is Chief Operating Officer of OWH. Mr. TSE Hau Yin
Aloysius is a Registered Auditor in Macau, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and a former president and
member of the Audit Committee of the HKICPA.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin Aloysius is an Independent Non-Executive, Chairman of
Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee of OWH.

Four meetings were held in 2014.
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Corporate Strategy and Business Model

The Bank is a leading financial service provider in Macau. We aim to be
the preferred choice of our customers for financial services and to increase
shareholders’ value by maintaining a consistent growth in return on
equity.

To be successful, we need to be focused and responsive as business
environments are challenging and ever changing. The Bank’s strategic
objective is to continue to strengthen both business and operational
aspects of the Bank to ensure satisfactory returns to shareholders and to
further improve the competitiveness of the Bank.

Core Values
All activities of the Bank are conducted in the context of the following
values:

e Strong Credit Culture
All lending activities must conform to a prudent credit policy and all
lending staff must be attuned to the Bank’s professional and diligent
credit environment and mentality.

e  Superior Customer Service and Trust
We must strive to win the trust of our customers by providing the
highest quality and the most user-friendly services.

e Teamwork and Professional Work Force
All staff should be coached to be a team worker and with a spirit
of co-operation amongst a professional workforce that strives for
excellence.

e  Product & Service Innovation
We must be proactive in product and service development by keeping
in close touch with innovations in the market with a goal to quickly
implement and meet the needs of our target customers.

e  Ethical and Professional Conduct
All our dealings with the public, our customers and staff must be
conducted at the highest level of ethical and professional standards in
order to maintain the trust of our customers and corporate reputation
of the Bank.
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Remuneration Committee

The Bank follows the principle of the remuneration policy of OWH. The
Board has mandated a committee comprising Mr NA Wu Beng, Mr Frank
John WANG, and Ms KNG Hwee Tin to determine the Bank’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Executive Directors and senior management of
the Bank, by reference to corporate goals and objectives as determined
by the Board from time to time. In determining the remuneration policy,
the Committee takes into account the Bank’s business objectives, human
resources strategy, short-term and long-term performance, business and
economic conditions, and market practices in order to retain staff with
relevant expertise for the Bank’s long-term success.

The mandate also empowers the Committee to appoint all Directors and
members of senior management.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has established the following committees to oversee the day-
to-day operations of the Bank. All committees have specific terms of
reference in order to ensure that they discharge their functions properly
and to report back to the Board, where appropriate, their decisions and
recommendations. Information on these committees is set out below:

Management Committee

The Management Committee meets regularly to review and approve
all major matters relating to the strategy and planning, operations,
management and performance of the Bank. It is granted powers and
authorities necessary for conducting and managing the Bank’s normal
banking and related activities.

Members of the Management Committee are as follows:

—  Group Executive of OWH;

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;
— Head of Retail Banking Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division;

— Head of Operations Division; and

- Head of Self-Service Banking Division.
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Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to formulate,
approve and implement loan policies, guidelines and credit practices of
the Bank. It is also responsible for the implementation and maintenance
of the Bank’s credit risk management framework. It also participates in
evaluating large credit applications and making credit decisions.

Members of the Credit Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager,

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

—  Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;

- Head of Corporate Banking Division; and

- Head of Credit and Risk Management Department.

Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for
the implementation and maintenance of the overall risk management
framework relating to balance sheet structure, market risk, trading,
funding and liquidity risk management of the Bank. It recommends policy
and guidelines to the Board for approval.

Members of the Asset and Liability Management Committee are as
follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Treasury Department; and

— Head of Financial Management Department.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee provides a structured, cohesive and
forward-looking mechanism to identify, measure, monitor and control the
various type of risks across the entire spectrum of the Bank’s activities.
While each of these risks is managed by the division/department with
specialized knowledge and expertise in that area, the Risk Management
Committee is assigned to oversee the overall assessment and management
of these risks. The Risk Management Committee aims to ensure that the
levels of risks are within the parameters set by the Board and that the risk
management process meets the standards required by the AMCM.
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Members of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

— Head of Operations Division;

— Head of Credit and Risk Management Department;
— Head of Legal and Compliance Department;

— Head of Financial Management Department;

—  Head of Self-Service Banking Division; and

— Head of Information Technology Department.

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Committee
The Anti-Money Laundering (“AML") and Counter-Terrorist Financing
("CFT") Committee is formed to oversee the functioning and effectiveness
of AML/CFT control measures so that all AML/CFT cases or issues are
properly monitored and addressed in a timely manner. It meets regularly
to discuss and approve actions and initiatives to mitigate risks arising from
AML/AFT matters and ensures proper control measures are in place to
meet the AML/CFT statutory and regulatory requirements.

Members of the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;

— Head of Retail Banking Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division;

—  Head of Operations Division;

— Head of Branch Operation & Planning Department;
— Head of Human Resources Department;

— Head of Central Control Department;

— Head of Legal and Compliance Department;

— Deputy Head of Legal and Compliance Department; and
- Head of Internal Audit Department.
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Internal Controls
The Directors are responsible for internal controls of the Bank and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

Procedures are designed to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; maintain proper accounting records; and ensure the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for publication.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and report on
major risks the Bank faces. Risk management policies and major risk
control limits are approved by the Board.

Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of
risks arising under their areas of responsibility and the management
of such risks in accordance with the Bank’s risk management policies
and procedures. The relevant risk management reports are submitted
to the Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee, Risk Management Committee and the Board for
monitoring the respective risks.

More detailed discussions on the policies and procedures for management
of major risks the Bank faces, including credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks as well as capital management, are included in note 24 to
the financial statements.

A review of the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control system
covering all key controls, including financial, operational, compliance and
risk management controls, is conducted annually. The result of the review
at the end of 2013 has been reported to the Board.

Internal audit plays an important role in the Bank's internal control
framework. It monitors the effectiveness of internal control procedures
and compliance with policies and standards across all business and
operational units. Senior management is required to provide the internal
audit function with written confirmation that it has acted fully on all
recommendations made by external auditors and regulatory authorities.
The internal audit function also advises senior management on operational
efficiency and other risk management issues. The work of the internal
audit function focuses on areas of greatest risk to the Bank as determined
by risk assessment. The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the General
Manager and President of the Supervisory Council. Audit reports are
submitted to the Board and Audit Committee of OWH for review.

Macau, 18 March, 2015
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As a well-established financial institution with a long history in Macau, we
are reliable and trustworthy to our community. We have a responsibility to
contribute to the development of our community and employees. Hence,
corporate social responsibility (“CSR") is a core aspect of our business and
we have a strong sense of commitment in fulfilling this responsibility and
ensuring that it is part of our everyday operation.

It is in our interest to act upon our goals of CSR. We realize that the
more harmonious the place in which we run our business, the greater the
chance of success. Therefore, CSR has always been an integral part of
the Bank’s corporate strategy. It is our belief that a responsible business
creates a win-win situation for the Bank, its shareholders, customers,
employees, business partners, and the society at large.

At OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau), corporate social responsibility

R RTETE) - AT SR « 2 MIBIBR represents our commitment to promote business activities that bring
e NIRITERGBEITEE R REBREEMEE  economic, social and environmental benefits to the society. We attain
Bt o the targets by actively fulfilling our governance, environmental and
community responsibilities.
- —— /= 2 =
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CSR in OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau)
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Governance Responsibility
Good governance enables us to manage risk and earn the trust of
customers and stakeholders.

CSR Management

To plan and manage our CSR activities in a systematic and coherent
manner, we have a CSR Committee to develop strategies, policies and
guidelines on CSR. The Committee also approves, supervises and monitors
the implementation of all CSR initiatives. Our monitoring and review
system on the CSR framework is on-going so that we continuously
improve our CSR strategies.

A CSR Working Team and various support teams working under the
direction of the CSR Committee are responsible for the promotion,
support and organization of CSR activities.

In an ever-changing business environment, the CSR Committee monitors
the Bank’s corporate governance practices to ensure all our activities
are conducted with professionalism, high ethical standards, integrity
and honesty. Compliance, which governs our daily operations, is every
colleague’s responsibility. We organize on-going compliance training to
uphold the Bank’s standard of business practices and services.

Risk Management

Corporate governance in the Bank includes a risk management framework
to manage economic and social risk, to ensure business continuity and to
serve the interests of our stakeholders.

Business Ethics

We strongly believe that providing quality services with high ethical
standards and practices to customers is a key element to maintain good
relationship with our customers. This is essential to sustain growth in our
business, and is definitely in the interest of our shareholders.

I L LT 0P 13}
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Fulfilling CSR has always been an integral part of the Bank’s corporate strategy
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Environmental Responsibility

Being environmentally responsible not only protects the environment
when we use our natural resources more efficiently, it also helps us build
a less polluting environment and improve our quality of life.

Green Office Campaign

As a socially responsible corporation, we actively work towards a green
future. “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” is the theme of the Bank’s Green
Office Campaign. With a firm belief that every bit of effort helps, all staff
are encouraged to protect the environment.

Continual Support of Environmental Activities

We showed our support to various environmental protection activities,
like the “Earth Hour” organized by WWEF, the "Energy Conservation
Week"” organized by the Macau SAR Government and assist the
Macau Environmental Protection Bureau to send out the message of
environmental protection via our network.

Our Environmental Protection Committee continuously reviews and
promotes various activities to educate and enhance the awareness of
environmental lifestyle of our employees.

Eco-Friendly Customers and Suppliers

The Bank constantly educated our customers to make use of our electronic
banking services, including e-statement to reduce paper usage. Some
of our corporate customers and major suppliers have also installed
environment protection facilities and adopted environmental friendly
practices in their daily operation.

TEHERRRER P INEE)

We organized regular recreational and outdoor activities
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We organized regular recreational activities for our staff

Community Responsibility

We aspire to be the employer of choice for desired talents as our strong
performance is driven by employees with passion and commitment. We
also believe our business can only succeed if the society is prospering.
Hence, it is our responsibility to further the development of our employees
and support the community.

Equal Opportunity

The bank ensures equal opportunity in employment. We encourage
breaking unnecessary barriers and building a harmonious working
environment for all staff. The Bank will continue to support equal
opportunity in our employment practice.

Employee Enrichment

Our staff is our greatest asset. Nurturing out staff and helping them to
relieve their stress can increase their efficiency and performance at work.
We realize that consistent and excellent staff performance, as well as
strong commitment are important to the Bank's success.

We treasure our employees by providing a safe and quality-working
environment as well as suitable and competitive remuneration to meet
their needs.

Training and Further Studies

We always focus on nurturing our employees to be all-round performers.
Programs for Management Trainees and Super Service are held to
develop talents and enable the Bank to stay competitive in a dynamic
business environment. Education allowances are offered to employees to
encourage them to further equip themselves to best serve the Bank and
the customers.
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Our volunteer team actively participated in different charity and community services
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Work-life Balance

In 2014, the Bank continued to launch Staff Caring Weeks Program with
the theme of “Balance well to Reach High” to cultivate a strong sense of
social responsibility and raise the importance of health, family, leisure and
life-long learning amongst our workforce.

In order to help employees relieve their stress and maintain good
relationships with their families, various recreational and outdoor activities
were organized during the year for our staff and their families.

Community Services

We believe that by devoting resources and efforts in community services,
the Bank can contribute to the building of a harmonious society. The
Bank’s Volunteer Service Team actively participates in social activities and
contributes our efforts to the well being of the needy.

Donations and Sponsorships

The young generation is the pillars of our future, so we set up the
“Elite Student Award” Scheme starting from 2005 to recognize the
achievements of primary and secondary students in different arenas. Up till
now, over 1,000 students had been awarded.

In the past year, we have donated to various charity organizations,
including Caritas Macau, Tong Sin Tong, Macau Red Cross, Orbis, Oxfam,
World Vision and Fu Hong Society.
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Volunteer Services

In 2014, 150 members of our Volunteer Service Team devoted 1,202
community service hours for a number of worthy causes. The Bank is an
active partner of ORBIS and Caritas in Macau to support their mission of
helping the poor and needy in the society. Aside from issuing the ORBIS
and Caritas Charity Credit Cards and donates 0.3% of spending on each
transaction to ORBIS and Caritas Macau, the Bank also sponsors and
supports the charity services of these two organizations. During the year,
we were one of the corporate ambassadors of ORBIS’s “Action for Sight”
in support of their sight-saving projects worldwide. Our Volunteer Service
Team also vigorously supported the “Short-term Food Assistance Service”
of Caritas Macau and the “Rice Selling” campaign organized by Oxfam.

Future

We are proud of our strong commitments in all CSR aspects. CSR practices
in our Bank are dynamic and on-going. Looking ahead, we will continue
to identify opportunities to enhance our business practices from all CSR
perspectives by supporting various Non Government Organizations and
participate in voluntary work projects and fund-raising activities to further
support our community. We will continue our commitment to embody
CSR in our everyday business activities.
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Independent auditor’s report to the directors of Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A.
(Formerly known as Banco Weng Hang, S.A.)
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Banco OCBC Weng Hang,
S.A. (“the Bank"”) set out on pages 26 to 29, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2014, and the income statement, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
requirements as set out in the Macau Financial System Act (Decree-
Law No. 32/93/M) and the Financial Reporting Standards issued
under Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau SAR"). This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances; and maintaining
adequate and accurate accounting records.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards
and Technical Standards of Auditing issued by the Macau SAR. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing appropriate procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s professional judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, in all
material respects, the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 December 2014
and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standards of the Macau SAR.

This report is intended solely for filing with the Autoridade Monetaria de
Macau.

leong Lai Kun, Registered Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

24th Floor, B & C
Bank of China Building
Avenida Doutor Mario Soares

Macau

18 March 2015
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Income Statement

HE2014F 12431 HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(L BFTHEF T 517 ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
Bt 5E
Note 2014 2013
FBWA Interest income 4(a) 869,803 693,815
FEZ N Interest expense 4(b) (335,266) (228,724)
=S IENON Net interest income 534,537 465,091
FREE WA Net fees and commission income 4(c) 148,336 138,232
BIEEERAZZEMITA Net gain from financial instruments
2 FWER held for trading 1,348 6,351
H A YA Other income 4(d) 48,282 28,634
EERA Operating income 732,503 638,308
BESTH Operating expenses 4(e) (324,290) (285,023)
(R%) EREFEEEX Operating profit before impairment
REFBRIEERF losses and allowances (charged on)/
released from loans and advances 408,213 353,285
ERZREBKIR Impairment losses and allowances (charged
AR (IR %) /o B on)/released from loans and advances 4(F) (23,175) 385
EE 0 Operating profit 385,038 353,670
HERFEEEE Net (loss)/gains on disposal of tangible
Z2F(BKR) WE fixed assets (349) 54,165
B& %4 A F Profit before taxation 384,689 407,835
FiIE Taxation 5(a) (52,189) (51,539)
BB &R Profit after taxation 332,500 356,296
RERMLBEER(LER] Effects of additional impairment
HOEMERBEEEZHE allowances for loans under
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau
("AMCM") rules
MR B 18 0 Profit after taxation 332,500 356,296
BIESE BIEME I Increase in impairment allowances 19(b)
BB AL under AMCM rules net of tax (v) (3.626) (21,490)
BRESERKROIFEZHEER Profit after taxation under AMCM rules 328,874 334,806

FI0REFICH MWK AMBEHERM — B

,T/\ ®
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BEREAR

Balance Sheet

R2014F12H31H At 31 December 2014
(L BPIBF Tz 2)) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
k3
Note 2014 2013
&E ASSETS
e RIFHERITEZE - Cash and balances with banks, central banks
AL SR 1T N E At & R g F0E and other financial institutions 8 1,037,336 1,248,301
EHATF IERTTRIZE - Placements with banks, central banks and
FRRERTT R B fth & BB IR other financial institutions 9 1,809,307 2,533,782
EEES Trade bills 10 13,760 153,395
BERREE Trading assets 11 11,478 7,946
XEERRHEARIE Advances to customers and other accounts 12 22,117,900 19,656,091
TR AR REWE AR RIE Amounts due from parent company 23(b)
and fellow subsidiaries (ii) 8,141,576 3,481,079
AEHECREE Available-for-sale financial assets 14 1,645,526 3,797,228
BEEIHAKRE Held-to-maturity investments 15 = 51,500
BREEEE Tangible fixed assets 16 810,985 541,718
REE Total assets 35,587,868 31,471,040
RREZEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RITRIZE - PRIBITR Deposits and balances of banks, central
E b pEEEN banks and other financial institutions 44,246 2,166
EEEKR - TH - BERHEMER  Current, fixed, savings and other deposits
of customers 30,286,129 26,854,154
BEEAZARE Trading liabilities 17 15,838 13,655
FE A~ N HR R 18 Current tax payable 5(c) 48,033 48,284
EEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 5(d) 111,844 71,403
HiBE Other liabilities 18 417,920 441,002
ERFARRENBARZFR Amounts due to parent company 23(b)
and fellow subsidiaries (i) 1,586,217 1,468,184
wa® VOEIEAES 2o RlD 220N
R Share capital 19(a) 120,000 120,000
1 Reserves 2,957,641 2,452,192
BEmaAR Totalequity . 3.077.641 2572192
BRREDREE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 35,587,868 31,471,040

REESIEREENR2015F318A%E

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March

2015
EFI] Na Wu Beng
Zs 48 g Lee Tak Lim

FI0EEFICH 2B A BEHKR A — B

(7

The notes on pages 30 to 96 form part of these financial statements.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2014 27

(P:\jobs\04_ar\20150798 OCBC Wing Hang Bank AR2014\12 OCBC WHB AR2014_BS)
2nd Proof ¢ 11 May 2015 ¢ 10:18 11/05/2015 ¢ 02C ¢ Page 27



BRRERERE

Statement of Changes in Equity

B E2014F12H31HIFF/E For the year ended 31 December 2014
(LA BPIBF T2 ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
2014
BT RE
iR ha ~ME EERE Eftfife Efbff EERR BHEE RRERAE
Bank
premises  Investment
Share General legal revaluation revaluation  Regulatory Unappropriated Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
14F1 81848 At 1 January 2014 120,000 184,200 120,000 302,542 47,098 166,695 1,631,657 2,572,192
BIRRE Dividends paid 7(b) - - - - - - (120,000) (120,000)
EHRHEZ Appropriation to requlatory
AR reserve net of tax 19(b)v) - - - - - 3,626 (3,626) -
[REillGEE A Surplus on revaluation of bank
SO EtRs premises net of tax - - - 248,395 - = = 248,395
EHEHEZ Fair value changes of available-
HEHESRERE for-sale financial assets net
ATEEZEY of tax - - - - 44,554 - - 44,554
BOkE Transfer from reserve - - - (9.416) - - 9,416 -
Emz &R Profit for the year - - - - - 332,500 332,500
W14£12831R£8 At 31 December 2014 120,000 184,200 120,000 541,521 91,652 170,321 1,849,947 3,077,641
2012
HiTfmit K&
iE i —REE EERE EfERE EftRk Rl RERE RREsLE
Bank
premises  Investment
Share General legal  revaluation  revaluation  Regulatory Unappropriated Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
WI3E1R1BES At 1 January 2013 120,000 184,200 120,000 164,014 52,978 145,205 1,335,851 2,122,248
BERE Dividends paid 7(b) - - - - - = (48,000) (48,000)
EMBEEZ Appropriation to requlatory
EERERR reserve net of tax 19(b)(v) - - - = - 21,490 (21,490) -
EMBEE Surplus on revaluation of bank
ROTEhEs premises net of tax - - - 147,528 - - - 147,528
BHKHEL Fair value changes of
M HECHEE available-for-sale financial
N EWA) assets net of tax - - - = (5,380) - = (5,380)
BhkH Transfer from reserve - - - (9,000) - - 9,000 -
ER 2GR Profit for the year - - - - - - 356,296 356,296
WI3E12831RER At 31 December 2013 120,000 184,200 120,000 302,542 47,098 166,695 1,631,657 2,572,192

F30EEFHI6H 2 AR B KA — &8

,T/\ ®
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Cash Flow Statement

EE2014F12H31HIFFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
(L BFTEF T 5 ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
Bt 5E
Note 2014 2013
HEXTEMELEZRSE Cash generated from
77777777777777777777777777777 operating activities 22(a) 838,165 931,747
REEE Investing activities
BABLETEE Purchase of tangible fixed assets (14,195) (17,633)
AR EE & Purchase of available-for-sale and
EEZRIHEERMEE held-to-maturity financial assets (15,953,633) (3,080,761)
HERIETEEE Proceeds from disposal of tangible
fixed assets 73 103,316
HEREBERAHEESHEE Proceeds from sales and redemption of
available-for-sale financial assets 17,951,942 1,427,173
B B Dividends received 2,982 2,506
BEREZEBMAAN GRE) Net cash generated from/(used in)
ZI,E,%%%E investing activities 1,987,169 (1,565,399)
MEEH Financing activity
LR A Dividends paid 7(b) (120,000) (48,000)
HAREEHMAHZAEFEM  Netcash used in financing activity | (120,0000 (48,000)
HEeRZEFELEREM (B4) Netincrease/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents 2,705,334 (681,652)
HERZERELEEMN1A1B 48 Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4,877,854 5,559,506
BeRERRELER Cash and cash equivalents
MW12HA318 &8k at 31 December 22(b) 7,583,188 4,877,854
FEHKLEEBEHHRESRBAIE . Cash flows from operating
activities include:
B UF & Interest received 855,776 681,114
B A FILE Interest paid 301,116 206,570

F30EFEE96H T W BR ARG ®REN —2  The notes on pages 30 to 96 form part of these financial statements.

,T/\ ®
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

1 Reporting entity
Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. (“the Bank”) (formerly known as
Banco Weng Hang, S.A.) was incorporated in Macau on 2 September
1963. The Bank is engaged in commercial banking and related

financial services. The Bank has its registered office and principal

place of business at 241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro, Macau.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Principal accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements as set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M
and the Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) issued under
Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau SAR").

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Bank is set out below.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 18 March 2015.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that financial
instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale are stated at their fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2(e).

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas,
which is the Bank’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in Macau Patacas has been rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(d) Use of estimates and judgements

(e)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
MFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of MFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Financial instruments

(i) Initial recognition
The Bank classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred.
The categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-
maturity investments and other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,
in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs on
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Bank recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised using trade date accounting. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised using
settlement date accounting. From these dates, any gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recorded.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, but
exclude those investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or
financial liabilities which are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of trading, or are part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for as trading instruments.

The Bank has the option to designate financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when:

— the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;

— the asset or liability contains an embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract;

— or the separation of the embedded derivatives from
the financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities under this
category are carried at fair value. Changes in the fair
value are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase,
the difference between the net sale proceeds or net
payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, other than (1) those that the Bank
intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which
will be classified as held for trading; (2) those that the
Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or
(3) those where the Bank may not recover substantially
all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-
sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and
advances to customers and bank, and placements with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any (note 2(j)).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified in any of the other two categories
above. They include financial assets intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time, but which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in the
market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair
value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value are not recognised in the income
statement and are accumulated separately in equity,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised in the income statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be measured reliably, and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity securities are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any (note 2(j)). Interest income
from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method and dividend income from equity
securities are recognised in the income statement in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 2(o)(i) and
2(o)(iii) respectively.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold,
gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value,
and the accumulated fair value adjustments which are
released from the revaluation reserve.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity which the Bank has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity, other than (1) those
that the Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as
at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-
sale; and (2) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less impairment
losses, if any (note 2(j)). If, as a result of a change in
intention or ability, it is no longer appropriate to classify
an investment as held-to-maturity, it shall be reclassified
as available-for-sale and re-measured at fair value.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets
are priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are
priced at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest trade price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price
from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial
instruments, or if the market for it is not active, the fair value
of the instrument is estimated using valuation techniques
that provide a reliable estimate of prices which could be
obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the balance
sheet date applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs
are based on market data at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Bank uses the weighted average method to determine
realised gains or losses to be recognised in profit and loss on
derecognition.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(vi) Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative
and a host contract with the effect that some of the cash
flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. The embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for as a
derivative when (1) the economic characteristics and risks of
the embedded derivative are not closely related to the host
contract; and (2) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host
contract is accounted for in accordance with note (ii) above.

(f) Hedging
The Bank has no financial instruments which qualify for hedge
accounting.

(g) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

0)

Bank premises that are held for the Bank’s administrative
use are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amount,
being their fair values at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity by professional qualified
valuers, or at directors’ valuation by reference to open
market value, to ensure that the carrying amount does not
differ materially from that which would be determined using
fair values at the balance sheet date. Changes arising on
the revaluation are accumulated separately in equity in the
Bank premises revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited
to the income statement to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had previously
been charged to the income statement.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained profits
and is not reclassified to the income statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

(ii)

Bank premises that are not held for the Bank’s administrative
use and other tangible fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any (note 2())).

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of tangible
fixed assets that has already been recognised is added
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will
flow to the enterprise. All other subsequent expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of tangible fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in the income statement on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
tangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Freehold land and buildings
- Land
— Buildings

Not depreciated
50 years

25 to 50 years
3 to 10 years

Leasehold land and buildings
Office furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

(h) Operating lease
Where the Bank has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to income
statement in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from

the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the

income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the income
statement in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(i)

M

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Bank
may take repossession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers.
In accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy set out in note
2(j), impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances are
maintained after taking into account the net realisable value of
the repossessed assets. Repossessed assets continue to be treated
as securities for loans and advance until the Bank acquires legal
title of the assets through public auction. In that case, the assets
are recorded at the lower of their carrying amount of the related
loans and advances and fair value less costs to sell at the date of
exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised. The Bank does
not hold any repossessed assets for its own use.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets
are impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Bank about one or more of the following loss events which
has an impact on the future cash flows on the assets that can be
estimated reliably:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
borrower;

disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to
the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the
income statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments, which
are measured at amortised cost, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Bank is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that borrower are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in the
income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets).
Receivables with a short duration are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances, and

collective impairment allowances.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the
cash flows which are expected to be received discounted
at the original effective interest rate. In estimating these
cash flows, management makes judgements about the
borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of
any underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the Bank.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective loan loss allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and economic factors. In order
to estimate the required allowance, the Bank makes
assumptions both to define the way the Bank models
inherent losses and to determine the required input
parameters, based on historical experience and current
economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Bank makes
depends on how well the Bank can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Bank believes that the impairment
allowances on advances to customers are reasonable and
supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates
that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and be charged or
credited to the income statement. A reversal of impairment
losses is limited to the loans and receivables’ carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan
and the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans
that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrower’s financial position and where the Bank has
made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Renegotiated loans and receivables are subject to ongoing
monitoring to determine whether they remain impaired or
overdue.
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() EERMEE) (j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) THHESREE (ii) Available-for-sale financial assets
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When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to the income statement. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in the income statement
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised
in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
securities and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Such impairment
losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through the income statement. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in the income
statement.

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Impairment on held-to-maturity investments is considered
at both individual and collective level. The individual
impairment allowance is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting is material.

All significant assets found not to be individually impaired
are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has
been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not
individually significant are then collectively assessed for
impairment by grouping together financial assets with similar
risk characteristics.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Impairment of assets (continued)
(iii) Held-to-maturity investments (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement. A reversal of impairment losses shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

(iv) Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that tangible
fixed assets (other than properties carried at revalued
amount) may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro-rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Impairment of assets (continued)
(iv) Other assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

(1

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid inter-bank placements and investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost to the
Bank of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plan are recognised as expenses in the income statement as
incurred.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of prior years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available,
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available. Additional income taxes that
arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, the Bank
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually
applies to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

()

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (“the holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within other liabilities. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information is
obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(n)(ii) if and when (1) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Bank under the
guarantee, and (2) the amount of that claim on the Bank is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in other
liabilities in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation,
complaint or legal claim, arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(o) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be designated reliably, revenue is recognised in
the income statement as follows:

()

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments
is recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
the interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and
similar options) but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to
the income statement over their expected life.

Interest income and expenses on all financial assets and
liabilities that are classified as trading or designated at fair
value through profit or loss are considered to be incidental
and are therefore presented in net income from financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
together with all other changes in fair value arising from the
portfolio. Net income from financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss and net trading income
comprise all gains and losses from changes in fair value (net
of accrued coupon) of such financial assets and financial
liabilities, together with interest income and expense, foreign
exchange differences and dividend income attributable to
those financial instruments.

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of interest
income based on the original terms of the financial assets
is discontinued, but any increase in the present value of
impaired financial assets due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income is recognised in the income
statement when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is
interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as
income in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is
incurred or accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Bank
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial
asset are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to
the effective interest rate. When a loan commitment is
not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan
commitment fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over
the commitment period.

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment is quoted
ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Macau Patacas at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Macau Patacas at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Macau
Patacas using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included
in net realised and unrealised gains/losses on trading financial
instruments or financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. All other exchange differences relating to
monetary items are presented as gains/losses arising from dealing
in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in reserves.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Bank if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Bank;

(ii) has significant influence over the Bank; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Bank or the Bank’s parent.

(2) An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Bank are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Bank or an entity
related to the Bank.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3 Accounting estimates and judgements
Note 25 contains information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to fair values of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment losses

(i)  Loans and advances
Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Bank makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated
future cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is
described in accounting policy note 2(j). If management
has determined, based on their judgement, that objective
evidence for impairment exists, expected future cash
flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those of the
Bank. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis
of the current observable data. Management reviews the
methodology and assumptions used in estimating future
cash flows regularly to reduce any difference between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

(i) Available-for-sale equity securities

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity securities
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below cost. The determination of
when a decline in fair value below cost is not recoverable
within a reasonable time period is judgmental by nature,
so profit and loss could be affected by differences in this
judgement.

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Bank’s
accounting policies
Held-to-maturity investments
The Bank classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity and where the Bank
has a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity as held-
to-maturity investments. In making this judgement, the Bank
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments till
maturity.
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(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
4 EEGA 4 Operating profit
(a) FE YA (a) Interest income
2014 2013
FERWARE : Interest income arising from:
—FEURAFEEFAERZ — financial assets not measured at
SREE fair value through profit or loss 869,803 693,815
Hrp o of which:
— ERREZFEHWA — interest income from listed investments 29,584 29,113
—3EEMIRE 2 F BUWA — interest income from unlisted investments 32,452 25,474
—BESBREE 2 BIA — interest income from impaired financial assets 102 29
(b) RMEZH (b) Interest expense
2014 2013
FEXZHIRE : Interest expense arising from:
—FEURFEEFAERZ — financial liabilities not measured at
cRAaE fair value through profit or loss 332,116 225,260
—BEEMRBAE — trading liabilities 3,150 3.464
335,266 228,724
Hepo: of which:
— R FH - #ER — interest expense on current, fixed,
HEEsF 8 savings and other deposits of customers 322,234 222,039
—RITEZE « PFRBITR — interest expense on deposits and
HEtemlEiEzER balances of banks, central banks and
FEXH other financial institutions 9,882 3,221
(c) RFEERASWAFE (c) Net fees and commission income
2014 2013
R & RS WA Fees and commission income
—BRATFRER — Deposit related business 10,780 11,113
—BHERER — Loan related business 20,330 18,298
— BB FE — Trade finance business 8,872 9,251
— BRE A ¥R — Credit cards 46,279 42,498
-~ EEERGE — Stock-broking fees 32,005 30,984
—EERREE — Wealth management fees 5,233 4,148
—Hi KBRS — Other agency commissions 22,693 19,034
—Eft — Others 2,144 3,218
B RIEBRAS T H Less: Fees and commission expense - (312)
148,336 138,232
LA EFTYIRZ R BE RASWAZESR The above fees and commission were generated from financial
BREIERHEEE AT RIEEENAAF instruments that are not held for trading nor designated at fair value
BEZABEZESHIA - through profit and loss.
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4 EEBR e 4 Operating profit (continued)

(d) EflrA (d) Other income
2014 2013
f& B A Dividend income 2,982 2,506
HNE B B Gains arising from dealing in foreign currencies 26,325 19,416
Hith Others 18,975 6,712
48,282 28,634
(e) BEZH (e) Operating expenses
2014 2013
EE A Staff costs
e MEMEEB KA Salaries and other staff costs 155,719 149,333
RIRE R AN Retirement benefit costs 9,998 10,355
165,717 159,688
TEFENE 2T RRESH  Premises and equipment expense,
excluding depreciation 19,334 15,827
WeE(E16) Depreciation (note 16) 26,773 18,573
KEAEER Operating lease charges 3,317 3,382
= E R & Auditors’ remuneration 554 746
HAith Others 108,595 86,807
324,290 285,023
() EXFEBARESRRE) EH (f) Impairment losses and allowances (charged on)/released
from loans and advances
2014 2013
(ERIVER R Individually assessed
—he - Charged (23,625) (1,383)
BRI EER Collectively assessed
— o] — Released 450 1,768
BEFERREEE Net (charged)/released of impairment
H (328 o # losses and allowances for loans and
(BI5E13) advances (note 13) (23,175) 385
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
5 BiE 5 Taxation
(a) WBEBRRZBIESR : (a) Taxation in the income statement represents:
2014 2013
REATIE - RS RE T Current tax - Provision for Macau
BTEH Complementary Tax
REFEAERE Provision for the year 46,871 47,202
TEFEEEBCER),/ T B (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (211) 4
46,660 47,206
AEBE-PEARANE Current tax - The People’s Republic of
ENH China (“PRC") withholding tax
RE G A Provision for the year 5,035 2,108
ERERE Deferred taxation
B E R EA REE Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 494 2,225
52,189 51,539
2014 F ERFIFTISH AT ERB L Z The provision for Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12%
FEGAAERT A BETHREI12% (2013: 12%) of the Bank’s estimated assessable profits for the
(20134 : 12%)5t& - year ended 31 December 2014.
2014FEREARAMBBNE iz The provision for PRC Withholding Tax is calculated at 7% (2013:
ZFEEERDA B W= BIRITHERT% 7%) of the assessable interest income for the year ended 31
(2013%F : 7%)sT & - December 2014.
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5 BiE®) 5 Taxation (continued)

(b) BBEXHREREABRR 2GR (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
B : at applicable tax rate:
2014 2013
% %
B 35 A1 A Profit before tax 384,689 100.00 407,835 100.00
FR 75 B ) 2 Notional tax on profit before
BERIA taxation 46,163 12.00 48,940 12.00
AR 2 Tax effect of non-deductible
MIAR & expenses 1,167 0.30 495 0.12
TEFEER (Over)/under-provision
(BF) TR in prior years (211) (0.05) 4 0.00
Hih Others 35 0.01 (8) (0.00)
i A RAMBEFENF Withholding tax in the PRC 5,035 1.31 2,108 0.52
ERHBESTH Actual tax expense 52,189 13.57 51,539 12.64
(c) TEEEBRAZTHBES ! (c) Current tax payable in the balance sheet represents:
2014 2013
REFRPIPAG Provision for Macau Complementary Tax
IR BILERE for the year 46,871 47,202
REE A RAFBE BN AEE Provision for PRC withholding tax 1,162 1,082
48,033 48,284
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
5 BiE®) 5 Taxation (continued)
(d) ERERZELHEAS (d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised
FRANEERERAERZELEHRIES The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
B2 EKE D REZEHMT balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows:
RESER

EffTH FEEMz
HEZ BEEE
£®EE  Additional

Revaluation impairment B
of available- allowances SRATITHE
for-sale debt under Revaluation
financial AMCM of bank &5
assets rules premises Total
EEHRERE : Deferred tax arising from:
2014F1 B1B&E# At 1 January 2014 (6,423) (22,731) (42,249) (71,403)
U 25 2% Nl B Charged to income statement - (494) - (494)
REE A Charged to reserves (6,075) - (33,872) (39,947)
201412 A31B## At 31 December 2014 (12,498) (23,225) (76,121)  (111,844)
2013F 1 A1 &% At 1 January 2013 (7,225) (19,800) (22,838) (49,863)
W% MR Charged to income statement - (2,931) 706 (2,225)
B RMER Charged to reserves 802 = (20,117) (19,315)
201312 A31H%% At 31 December 2013 (6,423) (22,731) (42,249) (71,403)
BN RITREEABRBEAR Apart from the above, the Bank does not have any significant
A AEA] B AR IE R I AR IR B4 o unprovided deferred taxation arising for the year or as at the balance
sheet date.
6 EENEEAME 6 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
2014 2013
=Tk Fees 240 265
H A B & Other emoluments 6,742 6,539
6,982 6,804
RATH AR R E R B A RECRE - Certain directors of the Bank received remuneration from group
ZE WM R BB ARIT o companies but no allocation has been made to the Bank.
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7 BE 7 Dividends

(a) xFERE (a) Dividends attributable to the year
2014 2013
EHEERREIR 2 RBRE Final dividend of MOP Nil (2013: MOP100)
BRE@RRFIEE0T (2013 per ordinary share proposed after
& BRPI¥1007T) the balance sheet date - 120,000
EHERERIR 2 RERE - WARRE The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not been
HRBAREBE- recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
(b) REAMERRBZEFESRE (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year, approved and

paid during the year

2014 2013
RERENIRE 2 EZFRE  Final dividend in respect of the previous year,
A% B AR E@mARPI® 100t approved and paid during the year of
(20134 : JRPI#407T) MOP100 (2013: MOP40) per ordinary share 120,000 48,000

8 MEKTFHMETHEZE - 524 8 Cash and balances with banks, central banks

TREMSEEERIE and other financial institutions
2014 2013
IR R Cash balances 376,852 394,884
F R RERTTFRIE Balances with central banks 521,534 489,310
FHERITRI R Balances with banks 138,950 364,107
1,037,336 1,248,301
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

9 THIGZEMIBITEE - wREEIT 9 Placements with banks, central banks and
REHME mEERIE other financial institutions
2014 2013
FHAFERERTT R ¥ 08 Placements with banks 1,809,307 2,533,782
10ESEE 10 Trade bills
2014 2013
ZE5EE Trade bills 13,760 153,395
AITRER » WES il 2 5 ERELRE During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been made in
HEFE(2013F + £) o respect of the above trade bills (2013: Nil).
1M EERAREE 11 Trading assets
EERAREEFEATESMIAZERN Trading assets represent positive fair values of derivative financial
FTEEMPEEGERERABIR 5 2 &% instruments and include balances with the parent company
758 P9 % 4,869,000 7T (2013 6 « JRPI amounting to MOP4,869,000 (2013: MOP4,299,000).
4,299,0007T) °
NREFERKRHEMIRIE 12 Advances to customers and other accounts
(a) BEFEFRHEMEBEEINRREES (a) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less
impairment allowances
2014 2013
BEEREE Gross advances to customers 21,950,541 19,501,200
BAEE R Z BRI EZEE Individual impairment allowances for
(B$3E13) impaired loans and advances (note 13) (23,421) (1,633)
Bz BB EER Collective impairment allowances for
(B$5E13) loans and advances (note 13) (7,841) (8,291)
21,919,279 19,491,276
AHEFAE Customer liability under acceptances 73,950 48,704
FEETFI & Accrued interest 82,968 68,941
HMARIA Other accounts 41,703 47,170
22,117,900 19,656,091
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(b) EFERITEDIE
BEFERZITERRR
&0 JA AR (DR

NREFERKREMIRE &) 12 Advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)
(b) Advances to customers analysed by industry sectors

ZZEE R H The information concerning advances to customers by industry
B2 - sectors is prepared by classifying the advances according to the

usage of the advances and is stated gross of any impairment

allowances.
2014 2013
TFE WA ®P BB
BEXRAE EFER B BREER
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired
advances to advances to  advances to  advances to
customers  customers customers customers
ERMEAZER Advances for use in Macau
IT%¥ mwmErER Industrial, commercial and
financial
MEZRE Property development 632,973 20,678 664,139 20,678
YERE Property investment 2,610,155 - 2,204,421 -
B TS g Financial concerns 15,284 - 11,211 =
P ETEZE Wholesale and retail trade 1,628,275 - 1,348,649 =
Rk Manufacturing 211,546 - 493,315 =
EREERRE Transport and transport
equipment 33,929 - 23,424 -
AR Information technology 500 - - -
REF@EZER Share financing 52,245 - 43,307 -
Hh Others 1,183,260 - 1,324,496 =
EA Individuals
BEATWEZER Advances for the purchase of
residential properties 11,359,152 1,193 10,279,886 1,793
ERAEER Credit card advances 214,223 840 208,291 593
Hih Others 3,602,070 3,482 2,528,907 2,222
21,543,612 26,193 19,130,046 25,286
BEZmE Trade finance 383,182 - 365,585 =
ERMUMERZ Advances for use outside
B Macau 23,747 - 5,569 -
21,950,541 26,193 19,501,200 25,286
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(LCEPTRFTIZT - Bathsp)

NREFEXRREMERE %)

58

(c)

(d)

MEZEFEX
MEZEFPEFRER HEARHER
BRI EEEDTMT

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

12 Advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(c)

Impaired advances to customers

The gross impaired advances to customers, market value of
collateral held with respect of such advances and individual
impairment allowances are as follows:

2014 2013

B2 BREER AR Gross impaired advances to customers 26,193 25,286
BERFERBEERER Gross impaired advances to customers as a

ER@gEZANl percentage of total advances to customers 0.12% 0.13%
BEEFPER ZERRTE Market value of collateral held with respect

to impaired advances to customers 21,871 22,472

18 Bl (B 2E Individual impairment allowances 23,421 1,633

BEZEPEFREZERFE - AHEE
BRLBER 2 TBRERE - Zat Rk
% B K R AT UK (] SRR 2 % R (E 1R B
ERIFH S RMERER - MxEFmER
BREWE -

R2014%F 12 A31H &2013F12 A 31
B ATETFRITRAEZREF - WE
WEZRITEEER - IEREE R
B2 o

BEEE

72014512 A31 8 &2013F12 A 31
B RTEBRHEEMKEIEE -

E/XFRITVROBABRDT « 20145 5K

(d)

Impaired advances to customers are individually assessed loans
with objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after
taking into account the net present value of future recoverable
amounts in respect of such loans and advances, and the collateral
held mainly comprised properties.

There are no impaired advances to bank nor individual
impairment allowances made on advances to bank as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

Repossessed assets
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Bank did not hold any
repossessed assets.
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1B3EFERZEEEE

13Impairment allowances on loans and

advances to customers

2014
1@ 31 e =)
Individual Collective Total
I RREE At 1 January 1,633 8,291 9,924
i Additions 24,607 2,575 27,182
[o] % Releases (982) (3,025) (4,007)
SE ()55 %%  Net charge/(credit) to income
(BEE4(f)) statement (note 4(f)) 23,625 (450) 23,175
Ug [8] & 4 B Wik 2 Recoveries of advances written off
B in prior years 883 - 883
F A HIBR Amounts written off (2,720) = (2,720)
12 8318484 (FfsE12(a)) At 31 December (note 12(a)) 23,421 7,841 31,262
2013
& 51 g A&
Individual Collective Total
1818 4% At 1 January 2,354 10,059 12,413
Hrig Additions 3,851 - 3,851
[o] Releases (2,468) (1,768) (4,236)
SER (B8 SR P Net charge/(credit) to income
(B5E4(f)) statement (note 4(f)) 1,383 (1,768) (385)
WEEED B2 Recoveries of advances written off
B in prior years 671 - 671
FERMWB Amounts written off (2,775) = (2,775)
12 A31 B &88(Fi5E12(a)) At 31 December (note 12(a)) 1,633 8,291 9,924
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14N HEEEREE

15

60

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

14 Available-for-sale financial assets

2014 2013
BERES Debt securities
BHERIET-IELT(BFES) Issued by sovereigns — unlisted (Treasury bills) 189,927 2,588,490
T e e ) Issued by corporates — listed 645,534 559,668
EEIT-IELET Issued by corporates — unlisted 101,652 143,335
NEIBE{T—ET Issued by public sector entities — listed = 44,262
EREEEIT - L™ Issued by financial institutions — listed 94,992 64,866
S RIEEEIT LT Issued by financial institutions — unlisted 482,350 317,678
1,514,455 3,718,299
= Equity securities
HEBIT—IEE™ Issued by corporates — unlisted 93,317 46,451
g h e ] Issued by corporates - listed 37,754 32,478
. 131,071 78,929
1,645,526 3,797,228

FREZEIMARE

ERES
SRMEBERT LD

15 Held-to-maturity investments

2014 2013

Debt securities

Issued by financial institutions — unlisted - 51,500

A

MR2014F9 18 BT HEEKRER QAW
AR R ATTZEREREEE )
ENEH LMEBEFFEREEHA - ERN
EHEZ EREERMAREERIBAAZE
CREBEERHANERNETSIER
AEEENER c REFOEER 38
R RAEESFET O EAREEE 2 E

BHONTBRAT :

JE LT

On 1 September, 2014, in order to align with the accounting policy
of the ultimate holding company, the management of the Bank
have changed the intention not to hold to maturity of its held-to-
maturity debt securities. Based on this change, the management have
reclassified all the held-to-maturity debt securities from the held-
to-maturity category to the available-for-sale category. The amount
reclassified from held-to-maturity debt securities to available-for-sale
debt securities on the date of reclassification is as follow:

RITR20145

IR 1EMREEE
The Bank carrying
amount on

1 September 2014

Unlisted 51,500

N ESHHBAEL Z RBRW S ARPTE
545,700t E R A2 E N ER - iR
BES R FE NIRRT -

E/XFRITVROBABRDT « 20145 5K

The above reclassification has resulted in an unrealised gain of
MOP545,700 recognised in other comprehensive income which will
be amortised to profit or loss over the remaining tenor of the debt
securities.
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16 BB EEE 16 Tangible fixed assets

2014
B - g
RERER
Furniture,
fixtures,
$81T1THL equipment and &Er
Bank premises motor vehicles Total
A - At cost or valuation:
201441 B1 H &8 At 1 January 2014 531,841 156,947 688,788
NE Additions 43 14,152 14,195
HeE Disposals - (6,093) (6,093)
EHAR Surplus on revaluation 282,267 - 282,267
EHEH[BITITULZ Elimination of accumulated
REtITE depreciation on revalued
bank premises (10,842) - (10,842)
20145125315% R At 31 December 2014 803,309 165,006 968,315
HEHE Accumulated depreciation:
20144F1 B 1 H &8 At 1 January 2014 31,433 115,637 147,070
NEERE (MEE4 ) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 13,090 13,683 26,773
o E R Written back on disposals - (5,671) (5,671)
KEHEHRITITHEZ Elimination of accumulated
ZEITE depreciation on revalued
bank premises (10,842) - (10,842)
2014512 B31H &8 At 31 December 2014 33,681 123,649 157,330
BREDFE ¢ Net book value:
2014412 B31 H &8k At 31 December 2014 769,628 41,357 810,985
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16 BREEEE @ 16 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
2013
B FiE -
BYpELT
Furniture,
fixtures,
$R77174L  equipment and A&t
Bank premises  motor vehicles Total
A fEE - At cost or valuation:
201351 A1 B &% At 1 January 2013 417,806 147,357 565,163
= Additions 729 16,904 17,633
He Disposals (49,091) (7,314) (56,405)
BhEH%H 167,645 - 167,645
EHEM[BPITITULZ Elimination of accumulated
REtiTE depreciation on revalued
bank premises (5,248) - (5,248)
201312 A31 B &6 At 31 December 2013 531,841 156,947 688,788
HEHE Accumulated depreciation:
201351 A1 B &% At 1 January 2013 29,186 111,813 140,999
NEERE (MEE4 ) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 7,495 11,078 18,573
H & iR Written back on disposals - (7,254) (7,254)
EHEGRITITHEZ Elimination of accumulated
ZEITE depreciation on revalued
bank premises (5,248) - (5,248)
2013412 B31H &8k At 31 December 2013 31,433 115,637 147,070
AR FE - Net book value:
2013412 B31H &8k At 31 December 2013 500,408 41,310 541,718

62

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

201411 A308 © #1E3ETBURGE MR
TATHERIFEA TR R M IRITATHE - BAEH
B EMITE K FAENEEREER
BERAR(EFNEIABTBIEMEY
MWEFRGE)EM - ZARIIHEEHWE
BIFTE SR AEE R TE R T AR5 -

EIRE(HETEE2014%12 A31 HEL2014%F
118308 @ FHEFETHRARMHRITITHLA
BETRARMBTTUEZ AFEE - W8
BERNE -

E/KFRITVROBABDT « 20145 5K

Bank premises held for non-administrative use and bank premises
held for administrative use were revalued by an independent firm of
surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited as at 30
November 2014, who have among their staff, Fellows of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors, with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

Management has assessed that the fair value of bank premises held
for non-administrative use and bank premises held for administrative
use at 31 December 2014 is not materially different from 30
November 2014.
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16

17

18

BREEEE®)

FEIETT A B SR 1T 77 4k Th IR A AR 3]
ik - EAF(EERBFIE1,645,013,0007T
(20134 : jBF9%1,238,987,0007T) °

RITHUATSHIETRARMNRITITL
R B i B 40 P9 #5 248,395,000 5T (2013
4 BP9 HE 147,528,000t ) (EfH B #
S P #E 282,267,000 7T (2013 F « B
167,645,000 7T ) 7 1 BR i & ¢ 5 B P9 ¥
33,872,0007C(20134F : EBF9#20,117,000
T ) BEEM B P RER, W ERTT
TUr B EES 25 -

BT EIRTBUR SR 2 IRITTTHE AR AR,
2EIFTEAR - EEREMER2014F12A31
H & &R P9 #548,470,0007T (20134 : JBFS
#49,864,0007T) °

RITITU 2 FREDFEDHT AT -

16 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

The fair value of the bank premises held for non-administrative
use which are stated at cost was MOP1,645,013,000 (2013:
MOP1,238,987,000).

The net revaluation surplus on bank premises held for administrative
use of MOP248,395,000 (2013: MOP147,528,000) (being revaluation
surplus of MOP282,267,000 (2013: MOP167,645,000) net of
deferred tax of MOP33,872,000 (2013: MOP20,117,000)) have been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
bank premises revaluation reserve.

The carrying amount of the Bank premises held for administrative
use would have been MOP48,470,000 (2013: MOP49,864,000) at
31 December 2014 had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

The analysis of net book value of bank premises is as follows:

2014 2013

TP 2 K A SR Freehold held in Macau 319,676 204,709
TR 2 A Leasehold held in Macau

— TR (AREIE106F A TE) - Short-term leases (less than 10 years unexpired) 449,952 295,699

769,628 500,408

BEEARER
EEMAAEEEATESHIAZ AT
BEROERBANRS 2 EHBRPIE
10,969,000 7T (20134 : JRF9% 9,356,000
) o

17 Trading liabilities

Trading liabilities represent the negative fair values of derivative
financial instruments and include balances with the parent company
amounting to MOP10,969,000 (2013: MOP9,356,000).

Hth& & 18 Other liabilities
2014 2013
FEIFI B Interest payable 100,362 66,212
O AR Acceptances outstanding 73,950 48,704
EHERENER Provisions for liabilities and accrued charges 49,395 40,904
rE Cashier order 77,367 110,873
Hih Others 116,846 174,309
417,920 441,002
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19 RN #fE

19 Share capital and reserves

(a) BRA (a) Share capital
2014 2013
HERRERBRAE Authorised, issued and fully paid:
1,200,0000% 2 1,200,000 ordinary shares
R BORPIE100T of MOP100 each 120,000 120,000

EBEREE AR EKRRTET IR K
B TARRATHNERELRER—F
MITAERER - B EBRERTHRIG
FEEDFRREH -

(b) &
(i) —m&EE
—REFBRBBRTERK LS
Ak ©
(i) EERE

EERBERRMSREREEZFE
%32/93M5E AL 6015 KIRPIRY
RN 43216 2 FBEKL ©

(i) REEMGHBE
REEHRHEEEATHREESRE
EZRFARABEEY  MEZX
BERR IR AR E2(e) A
fR - REEMRBBLIFEERZF
B WEARRE o

(iv) SBITITULE R E
RITITU E (A R TR FE2(g) A
BREVIRTTITUL B M 2 Z 5  RITTT
UERRFELFEERZAE - X
B AR

64 E/KFRITVROBABDT « 20145 5K

(b)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

at meeting of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Bank's residual assets.

Reserves

(i) General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of
unappropriated profits and is available for distribution.

(ii) Legal reserve

Legal reserve was set up in accordance with Article 60 of
Decree Law No 32/93/M and Article 432 of the Macau
Commercial Code.

(iii) Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets until the assets are derecognised and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e). It
does not represent realised profits and is not available for
distribution.

(iv) Bank premises revaluation reserve

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for the revaluation of bank premises in note 2(g). It does not
represent realised profits and is not available for distribution.
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19 RAK R 19 Share capital and reserves (continued)
(b) fE#E(E) (b) Reserves (continued)
(v) EEERE (v) Regulatory reserve

RiESEREDE18/935% 2 K
o SREBUFHBHRERRR
BHBRES —E a0 &ER
ERRE MEBKZIEEERE
ERERMINZEEEHRBIIE
HBRE1%Z—RERE - &A17T
Z B BORBE R IR R R 2) P
TREFTHERER - BB ERR
BEEEINEERZRIERRE
AT BRRFREL —FRER
ZREZFKFREFREERZ
EZH - EABRNBARERBARE
s - AEEEEREIIRET

In accordance with Aviso n.°18/93-AMCM, financial
institutions are required to maintain a minimum level
of specific provision for a bad and doubtful loan at a
percentage depending on the overdue period of the
loan, and a general provision at a minimum of 1% (“the
minimum level”) of the total balance of performing loans
and certain credit-related off balance sheet exposure. The
Bank recognises allowance for impairment losses on loans
and advances in accordance with the policy as set out in note
2(j). In case where such impairment allowances are lower
than the minimum level as required by AMCM, the Bank will
transfer an amount, which is equal to the difference between
the allowance and the minimum level, after adjustment
for taxation impact, from its unappropriated profits to the
regulatory reserve. The amount of regulatory reserve transfer
for the year is as follows:

2014 2013
—MRERSZREREZ Increase in impairment allowances for
$ 90 general provision 24,652 24,421
BIE BB @528 M IER IR Specific provision recognised under
EERIEHERIEINZ IAS but not under AMCM rules
HE#HRS (20,532) =
BIEESEBIEHIEIIE N Net increase in impairment allowances
B EREFE under AMCM rules 4,120 24,421
AR > B8 (H4355(d)) Tax effect on the additional impairment
allowances (note 5(d)) (494) (2,931)
3,626 21,490

HMR2014FEEFERUREEE
BERACEERBERUINZ RBBE
BR2013FE 2 8% - R RES
E BB E Sk 2 7 B 1 5 T AR e 3G
e

The total balance of performing loans and certain credit-
related off balance sheet exposure in 2014 is higher than
that of 2013, therefore, the total impairment allowances
required under AMCM rules is increased.
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0 EERBRUIIN ZARBEE

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

20 Off-balance sheet exposures

(a) IABBRARNEREEE

IRNEBRARERANENEERE
BERBHRZ RGBS - FHRESRF
R BEREZEEHEREMRS
NREEFHEIAR  BREAUREHREER
MIERE  BRERE GELEEEH
TAEMPRZER  KBEARKEET
BEFEMP k2 EERRIER - HEESR
T RINE KR BB B P LR
g Rz BB e o MR KA HERR
EEARMEERH IO TS RIRR - &
HNEBRBI TRRRKZRAERE -

SFEEERRINESBSIRBEREIT
EBIRRIT(BARE)ETE - TR ZRER
IFENF0%ZE100% °

AT BBHEERER 2 HNE AR
ZHREZERE

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit

Contingent liabilities and commitments arises from forward
asset purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares
and securities, forward deposits placed, asset sales or other
transactions with recourse, as well as credit-related instruments
which include, letters of credit, guarantees and commitments
to extend credit. The risk involved in these credit instruments is
essentially the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. The contractual amounts represent the
amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn upon and
the client defaults. Since a significant portion of guarantees and
commitments is expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total of the contract amounts is not representative of future
cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
amounts ranged from 0% to 100% in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2014 2013
BEEEZAREE Direct credit substitutes 184,403 176,251
BHEMZIARERE Trade-related contingencies 46,530 58,129
H i A Other commitments
— RAEAR 81 F — With an original maturity of
not more than 1 year - 146,036
—RARHAR1 A £ — With an original maturity over 1 year 498,583 775,080
— A (S EUY — Which are unconditionally cancellable 3,467,259 1,543,986
B Total 4,196,775 2,699,482
=B R NES R Credit risk weighted amount 460,647 560,605
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20 5EEEERUNIZERBREE »)
(b) EXREE
R2014F12A31 B ABEARETEE
EMARERERRFPIEHEFZER
AEPENT

ERERFITSHZFAX

Expenditure authorised and contracted for

20 Off-balance sheet exposures (continued)
(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
outstanding at 31 December not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

2014 2013

9,048 2,476

EREERBRFT K 2RAX

Expenditure authorised but not contracted for - -

(c) BEHEHKIE
R2014%F12 8318 @ 1B A HEH
WETE - RRFEENBEEFIEER

(c) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for properties

LN and equipment are payable as follows:
2014 2013
15 Within one year 1,974 1,536
15 A E1B5F A After one year but within five years 964 -
2,938 1,536

RITAKEHERAEAZ BN EMR
B MEFH-—RVEI1E24EA @ &
MR BENBEMIERERE - IE
HOXTE/RIAEE

The Bank leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to twenty-four months, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
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68

TEEMTA
PTAETAREMBAL - REBERTHSR
MRS ERAEERIEEME -

RTABONTET AR GRABRREERT
Ko EMEAHNRATTZEEERRES -
RAOTEARBRERFE - XTZHEHEER S
RALTEBERMEHFLEFT B ERAE
ZEAHZ G MABBEATA AR
HEEH P2 @RMT AR - XTUEEESR
ZUEH T BEE R ERAERE - £2014
FNANBMAENTETARABEZIEE
FBESRREEABRAZ [EERRE
EIRTEERRAGEIIR -

(a) TETAZEREH
TRARTVELAREERNEE S
B RENBIHANST - WETHR
ZERBCHEENEEEAHMRTRZR
58 A TRREREKE

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

21 Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the
value of one or more underlying assets or indices.

The majority of the derivatives transactions were initiated in response
to customer demand and the remaining were economic hedges for
the Bank's fixed-interest rate loans and debt securities. No significant
speculative positions are maintained by the Bank. The Bank entered
into interest rate swaps to hedge its investments in fixed-rate debt
securities so as to achieve a floating rate return. The swaps have
approximately the same maturity profile as the financial instruments
being hedged. The Bank has not elected to adopt hedge accounting
in respect of these swaps. The positive and negative fair values of the
derivatives as at 31 December 2014 were reported within “trading
assets” and “trading liabilities” respectively on the balance sheet.

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives
The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts
of derivatives of the Bank by relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining periods to settlement at the balance sheet date.
The notional amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of
outstanding transactions at the balance sheet date and do not
represent amounts at risk.

2014
10 E
{B5F R
1A Over 1 year 5F Mk

Within  but within Over &Er
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
RHEXRE4 Forward exchange rate contracts 2,697,410 - - 2,697,410
FIREEHEH Interest rate swap contracts 35,020 87,550 = 122,570
2,732,430 87,550 - 2,819,980
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21 19TE€/mIT B ) 21 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)

() TEIECRESHE(E) (a) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued)
2013
14E A E
B5F R
1/ Over 1 year S
Within but within Over ST
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
RHEER A Forward exchange rate contracts 1,728,242 = = 1,728,242
FRFHIE 49 Interest rate swap contracts 14,420 71,070 51,500 136,990
1,742,662 71,070 51,500 1,865,232
(b) FTETEZ EERMMESEE (b) Credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives
2014 2013
[EREH Exchange rate contracts 26,610 9,788
FIREEE 4 Interest rate swap contracts 519 743
27,129 10,531
HE = R EEE TR 2 B e The credit risk weighted amounts are computed in accordance
TIRERBRITEMNRIT(BARE) 7R with the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking
FENF0%ZE50% ° Ordinance and the risk weights used range from 0% to 50%.
WEHBEW R REEFHLHE 2 These amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral
%, netting arrangements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

22 RERERMHT 22 Notes to the cash flow statement
(a) BANEAERELTHMELEZRESR (a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash flows
EHRRK generated from operating activities
2014 2013
EETE Operating activities
R 35 AT A Profit before taxation 384,689 407,835
FEMT : Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 26,773 18,573
HEBFEEEEY Net loss/(gains) on disposal of tangible
FEK(CFWER) fixed assets 349 (54,165)
DEERE S 2T Amortisation of discount of debt securities (9,845) (9,962)
& B U A Dividend income (2,982) (2,506)
GINEE St A 18 S Foreign exchange loss 17,390 2,555
EFUREB KK ER Impairment losses and allowances charge/
=R (Bm) (release) of loans and advances 23,175 (385)
ERMER Loans and advances written off (1,837) (2,104)
437,712 359,841
RAEAR A=Az A L2 Decrease/(increase) in placements with banks
BITERFUR D (380) with original maturity over three months 674,030 (1,902,113)
B5ZEE D Decrease in trade bills 139,635 8,752
BEEAGREELN Increase in trading assets (3,532) (449)
BEER K EMERIAEE N Increase in gross advances to customers and
other accounts (2,483,147) (2,499,545)
RAHER A =8 A=k (Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
A EZFERERE R parent company and fellow
HIB AR ZHIA subsidiaries with original maturity
(3ghn) wd over three months (1,445,776) 9,298
SRITRIZE  FRRERIT Increase/(decrease) in deposits and balances
HEih o mpigig of banks, central banks and other financial
FREan Caidr) institutions 42,080 (71)
BEREAR - TH KR Increase in current, fixed, savings and other
REF RGN deposits of customers 3,431,975 3,586,975
BERSEEENC5d) Increase/(decrease) in trading liabilities 2,183 (5,964)
HEmBEECRLD) L0 (Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (23,082) 151,783
AR REHRBATZ Increase in amounts due to parent company
Ve &Yl and fellow subsidiaries 118,033 1,257,386
HEETHELEZES Cash generated from the operations 890,111 965,893
BEADRFFSH AR R Macau Complementary Tax and PRC
R AR EMBEIFENH Withholding Tax paid (51,946) (34,146)
HEXTHEL RS Cash generated from operating activities 838,165 931,747
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2 BERERMTE 2 22 Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)

(b) BERERBLER 20 (b) Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
2014 2013
Be MEFERERITRZ Cash and balances with banks, central banks
FRRIRITREMESRIEETIE  and other financial institutions 1,037,336 1,248,301

JRZNEAPR & =M@ B LA EHA Placements with banks, central banks and other
GFERERITRZE » PRIBITR financial institutions with original maturity

H b & m A IE 08 within three months 440,116 490,561
TR RE REK B AR Amounts due from parent company and
KIE fellow subsidiaries
— e RIFHRIRTTRIZE - & - Cash and balances with banks, central
RITRE M S B E IE banks and other financial institutions 80,182 90,800
—BEAREAR A= A LANTEE - Placements with banks, central banks and
FRERITRIZE - P RERTT other financial institutions with original
R H Ath & B IR maturity within three months 5,935,572 2,710,233
AEHE 2 SREE Available-for-sale financial assets
—BUNES — Treasury bills 89,982 337,959
7,583,188 4,877,854
ZEABEALRS 23 Material related party transactions
(a) TETBAEZHME (a) Key management personnel remuneration
FETBABZME - BIEWE6T#H Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
BEMNRITESERIE - BT paid to the Bank’s directors as disclosed in note 6, is as follows:
2014 2013
G HEBEA Short-term employee benefits 15,187 15,377
BERR 12 1B F Post-employment benefits 1,337 1,185
16,524 16,562
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(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

ZERBEALIRF %)
(b) BARIRENBRARAZRS
REFR - ATREATNEEKTRIT
ERATREMBATZXS  HiE—
MBIE R R AL EEET - FR2 K
% BESMEEN  ILEEZEAEA
e M S ERFERIINE ¢

23 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with parent company and fellow subsidiaries
During the year, transactions with the Bank’s parent company,
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited and fellow subsidiaries were
entered into by the Bank in the ordinary course of business and
on normal commercial terms. The income and expense for the
year, on and off-balance sheet outstandings at the balance sheet
date and corresponding average balances for the year are set out
below:

(i) WMARXZH (i) Income and expense

2014 2013
F B A Interest income 87,321 45,453
FEXH Interest expenses (13,000) (6,632)
BRARAESE Fees and commission expense - (313)
HAh Uz Other income 850 927
FHEEERASRZEMIA Net profit from financial instruments

3 held for trading 1,348 6,351

EEER Operating expenses (30,235) (29,570)
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ZERBEALIRF %)

(b) BRAARHEMBARZRS (&)

23 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with parent company and fellow subsidiaries

(continued)
(i) EEEBERAZER (ii) On-balance sheet outstandings
EE Assets
#EEH LR TR
Ending balance Average balance
2014 2013 2014 2013
[4 RIFMEEITEIE «  Cash and balances with
R R IT M E A banks, central banks and
% R T0E other financial institutions 757,917 359,990 561,381 210,042
EHFEMERTTRIE - Placements with banks,
FRRERTT central banks and other
HiepigEzom financial institutions 7,349,967 3,105,510 4,208,604 4,292,944
EEERREMIKE  Advances to customers and
other accounts 33,692 15,579 18,950 15,609
8,141,576 3,481,079 4,788,935 4,518,595
=L Liabilities
#“EH LR Tt
Ending balance Average balance
2014 2013 2014 2013
fR1TAEZE - hREETT  Deposits and balances of
N E & mhikiE banks, central banks, and
PR other financial institutions 1,578,856 1,466,842 919,715 909,959
EEAR - T8 - Current, fixed, savings
s REMFR and other deposits of
customers 218 221 218 221
EtmE R Other liabilities 7,143 1,121 1,380 1,612
1,586,217 1,468,184 921,313 911,792
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(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
ERBEALIRF ) 23 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) BAGRIREMBATZRS (&) (b) Transactions with parent company and fellow subsidiaries
(continued)
(i) EEEERIZER (iii) Off-balance sheet outstanding
HEHBAER T eEeR
Ending balance Average balance
2014 2013 2014 2013
EREE Contract amounts
HEEEZARER Direct credit substitutes — 515 11,794
(iv) fTESMI B2 48 (iv) Derivative financial instruments outstanding
HEEAES T4 R
Ending balance Average balance
2014 2013 2014 2013
EEREE Notional amounts
RAEEREL Forward exchange rate
contracts 2,340,096 1,330,950 1,657,781 1,183,741
FIREEE Interest rate swap contracts 122,570 136,990 122,570 244,282
(c) BRBEER (c) Loans to officers
EENR2014F12A31HZERAH Aggregate amount of relevant loans outstanding during the year
AZE(2013F : &) o and at 31 December 2014 is Nil (2013: Nil).
(d) R BEXRTALEAETFEEALZ (d) During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been
FIBE L ERDRE R R EHE (20135 ¢ made in respect of the above advances to related parties (2013:
) o Nil).
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24 B RERERE

AT HIEREK - B RRE - NEEAKTT
FASOTARBERR - NMTAEBEZHRR
EEZMLERENRLS - @A 5HE
ERRZHEERR  RBESER W5
Rbe K g ERR - ZFRBERBE - 2
RRBENREESIRKIEEZRE M
THERREEEH  ZEENREZRS
REERBERZES  FEHR - AE
BB EETERERIIBLRE - AER
FLERRRIRF LR AEH -

ARSI BATYH il ERR - BREE
REBHEE - REMEF - UREXEE
HER -

(a) FERBEE
EERBRNRZ S H FRELBITHE
- AREATHEN  BEZRE B
B TAETARHEMER ZEEIER
BAATZAKEEEIFNRERES
RHITEERRER -

2

FERREESBINEMEY  EE
SEBRNERRETREREEF G
RYtEHMEER - RTOEERRSET
BT EENER  FEfZEERNE
Fr ERXDBESRENBE - iR
BRFMSREEBEHAESI KRR
RIFT R R 2% A0 & R RISR B E AR
EERORERER °

EERBRERESIEHNATNERTF
it WEBREZE ST BRI
%o ERFMABEAEERRKE
RERE FEZERE BEFX0ER
7 FEERREBEREK -

24 Financial risk management

The Bank has established policies, procedures and limits to manage
various types of risk that the Bank is exposed to. Risk management
processes and management information systems are in place to
identify, measure, monitor and control credit risk, liquidity risk market
risk and operational risk. The risk management policies, procedures
and limits are approved by the Board of Directors or its designated
committee, and are monitored and reviewed regularly by the relevant
risk management committees, such as the Credit Committee and the
Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALMCO"). Internal
auditors perform regular audits and independent checking to ensure
compliance with the policies and procedures.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each
of the above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risks, and the Bank’s management of
capital.

(a) Credit risk management
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a
transaction may default. It arises from the lending, trade finance,
treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the Bank.
The Board of Directors has delegated the Bank’s credit risk
management to the Credit Committee, which is chaired by the
Bank’s General Manager.

The credit risk management function is independent of the
business units. It oversees the implementation of credit policies
and ensures the quality of credit evaluation and approval. Credit
approval is conducted in accordance with the Bank's credit policy,
which defines the credit extension criteria, the credit approval
and monitoring processes, the loan classification system and
impairment policy. The credit policy also takes into account the
guidelines issued by the AMCM and accounting standards issued
by Macau SAR with respect to large exposures and impairment
requirements.

Guidelines to manage credit risk have been laid down in
the Bank’s Loaning Manual, which is regularly reviewed and
approved by the Credit Committee. The Loaning Manual covers
the delegated lending authorities, credit extension criteria, credit
monitoring process, loan classification system, credit recovery
and impairment policy.
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24 i ERMERE &)
(a) EEABREE(H)

76

(i)

(i)

EEREERR
TEEE-REMNAGRREUKE
REPIRE o BriE B EWIHIN -
EREERRNIEFEREER
MEBIE - RITAEZEBERERER
UNHEBFERZHFARZNE
EERR  UEREHZEERS
BTG B EEPME - ATEH
E—EERRMBRZHFHTEH
MR EEBZREL - AIT7AE
B AE R 1T 5 R AN R 9 48 SR A FIE 3K
AEBRIEARRE - THwERE
ENREBREIFEERR - RN1TIRD
EERMEE  BERERERNR
BHERFR  REFETEEDN
A A -

AITRBETZEABRNEEEZ
MEZE - BRANEERRIEHES
BERFBERINIENRZH T
TEXERNER - REZEEE
HEERZEENEERR - @5
B ERMBEREER -

ZEFERR
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ANEEFHRGEERKARESR
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)

()

(i)

Corporate credit risk

The corporate lending is generally made to customers with
strong financial background. In addition to market targeting,
the principal means of managing credit risk is the credit
approval process. The Bank has policies and procedures to
evaluate the potential credit risk of a particular counterparty
or transaction and to approve the transaction. For corporate
clients, the Bank has a detailed risk grading system that
is applied to each counterparty on a regular basis. The
Bank also has limits for exposure to individual industries
and for borrowers and groups of borrowers, regardless of
whether the exposure is in the form of loans or non-funded
exposures. The Bank also has a review process to ensure the
proper level of review and approval depending on the size of
the facility and risk grading of the credit.

The Bank undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring
at several levels. The credit policies promote early detection
of counterparty, industry or product exposures that require
special attention. The Credit Committee oversees the
overall portfolio risk as well as individual problem loans and
potential problem loans on a regular basis.

Retail credit risk

The Bank’s retail credit policy and approval process are
designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively
homogeneous, small value transactions in each retail loan
category. Because of the nature of retail banking, the credit
policies are based primarily on statistical analyses of risks
with respect to different products and types of customers.
The Bank monitors its own and industry experience to
determine and periodically revise product terms and desired
customer profiles.

(iii) Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit
risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same
credit application, portfolio maintenance and collateral
requirements as for customers applying for loans.



24 B EREE 2) 24 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) EERBEE(Z) (a) Credit risk management (continued)

(iv) EERBNEH (iv) Concentrations of credit risk
EERBOERRR—ERSHF Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
SR E - ,Zg/%ﬁjzﬂﬁlﬁa”\]w geographic, economic or industry factors similarly affect
2 mMzEEENEREERRY groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
$TTE’J%@‘€‘; BMEBEE - RIEN material in relation to the Bank’s total exposures. The Bank

REREERA E&Bﬁ% Al Z A does not have significant exposure to any individual or group
G - AT EEEMAEA - B of customers or counterparties except for the amount due to
FaXSHFFEERNRR - the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

(1) =BRERE (1) Maximum exposure
ETEHIriE A B S A4 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance
FERARANBEAT £EA® sheet date without taking into consideration of
SaiEERR  EEEEARE any collateral held or other credit enhancements is
RAZEES R EELHBRR represented by the carrying amount of each financial
Tﬁiﬁﬁ?éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ o HIBR = assets in the balance sheet after deducting any
gLt an T impairment allowance. A summary of the maximum

exposure is as follows:

2014 2013
TFHERTTRIZE « RRIBITR Balances with banks, central banks
Hith & RIS TR and other financial institutions 660,484 853,417
FEHATF ERTTRIZE R RERIT  Placements with banks, central banks
R ot AR TR and other financial institutions 1,809,307 2,533,782
EE B Trade bills 13,760 153,395
EERSEE Trading assets 11,478 7,946
EFERRHEMIRIE Advances to customers and other
accounts 22,117,900 19,656,091
FHE AR RANBRFFHIE  Amounts due from parent company
and fellow subsidiaries 8,141,576 3,481,079
AIHHEE s SRMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 1,645,526 3,797,228
BFEEREBAKE Held-to-maturity investment = 51,500
MR EEMEEABRB 2  Financial guarantees and other credit
kA ERS related contingent liabilities 230,933 234,380
BEFREREME(ERAABREIZ  Loan commitments and other credit
I related commitments 3,965,842 2,465,102
38,596,806 33,233,920
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24 B EREE 2) 24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EEREKBEEZ) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) GERBRNES(Z) (iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)

(2) BEfZEEEZ (2) Credit quality of loans and advances
RITRAEERAMETFEER Advances to bank are only made to bank with good
FHRITRIE - REERME credit rating. The credit quality of advances to customers
BT ¢ can be analysed as follows:

2014 2013
EEERRE Gross advances to customers
—IEBHIhIERIE — neither past due nor impaired 21,633,455 19,192,657
—BHEIEIERE — past due but not impaired 290,893 283,257
— B E (KEE12(0)) — impaired (note 12(c)) 26,193 25,286
21,950,541 19,501,200
E o Of which:
EFEEXRBE Gross advances to customers
-1 A - Grade 1: Pass 21,867,850 19,431,634
— 2% FrRIBEER — Grade 2: Special mention 56,499 44,280
=3 TARE — Grade 3: Substandard 20,678 21,279
— 48R EEIRIA - Grade 4: Doubtful 2,270 1,685
—5#% - Bk — Grade 5: Loss 3,244 2,322
21,950,541 19,501,200
RITRBHREESCERAN® The Bank classifies the loans and advances in accordance
AN B Ejﬂﬁ BHIEESE with the loan classification system adopted by the Hong
e Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA").
BEEIERENE P ERIRE The ageing analysis of advances to customers that are
AITETR past due but not impaired is as follows:
2014 2013
WEAEIERE 2 R BT Gross advances to customers that are
past due but not impaired
—BEA3E A KA T — past due 3 months or less 283,041 282,047
—6fE A kLA B3 (E A £ — 6 months or less but over 3 months 5,099 1,210
—1FHATE6EH LA £ — 1 year or less but over 6 months 2,753 -
290,893 283,257

78 E/KFRITVROBABDT « 20145 5K

(P:\jobs\04_ar\20150798 OCBC Wing Hang Bank AR2014\15c OCBC WHB AR2014_Notes)
2nd Proof ¢ 11 May 2015 ¢ 10:18 11/05/2015 ¢ 02C ¢ Page 78



24 i ERMERE &)
(a) EEABREE(H)
(iv) EERBIES(Z)

3)

24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)

2) Bz EBEEZE(E) (2) Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)
R2014F 12 A31H » K17 As at 31 December 2014, there were no advances to
BmEFENEEIRAE RS customers that would be past due or impaired had the
SRMENEFEZR(20134F : terms not been renegotiated (2013: Nil).

/m) o
BEF RIRITEIZEBEF LI & (3) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to
BEENEEEE customers and bank
HERSGEERBREREF R Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the
KT EEERBREEAFAR— same way as the Bank manages its corporate lending
B B X 5EFEHRRT risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties
& WEE R 5 EFRER with individual counterparty limits set. It is the Bank’s
B BEBEATEEECR - BIE credit policy not to invest debt securities that are below
RIEZEg%RE  SRIRTH the grading of BBB by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
@I & R PAZ I B 5T AR or their equivalents unless it is approved by the Credit
Fr&FERIBBBAA K ERIBE 2 Committee.
REER - RBEATREE At the balance sheet date, the credit quality of
1ZAE LR AT AR IR 75 ok B 5 R #4 investment in debt securities analysed by designation of
BRI EMDT 2 EEESFE external credit assessment institution, Standard & Poor’s
BEZEMT : Ratings Services or their equivalents, is as follows:
2014 2013

AAA AAA - 44,262
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 682,457 2,971,034
A-ZEA+ A- to A+ 370,004 226,679
ERA- Lower than A- 77,283 139,437
mITR Unrated 384,711 388,387

1,514,455 3,769,799
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24 i ERMERE &)
(a) EEABREE(H)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)

80

(iv) FERRKNED(F)
(4) B EMIZHIEH
AIOIREFERMFREMER
1B At EEZMER B
FREERSEHANERR

SBHEIFRENEREET
FAENERGREMMERRET
M RAFEEBDT

SUBHIBIEREZ SREE
MEFA 2 B3 am R H A=A
R’IAZATFEE

(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)
(4) Collateral and other credit enhancements
The Bank holds collateral against advances to customers
in the form of mortgages over property, other registered
securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other
credit enhancements held against past due but not
impaired financial assets is as follows:

2014 2013
Fair value of collateral and other credit
enhancements held against financial
assets that are past due but not
impaired 1,324,226 1,123,019

ZeRMEEREERERERD
SEEFRBRSTRHEI10Z
15 EE °

(b) RBERRER

nBETRBREERERENENEE
BRYENBIBERNRR - AITER]
URHEERRBRERWE - BREMRE
R RARBES -

RBETHAEREERBERLZEE
MEHER BEERAEBEEZESMH
REEE - AP RRERE - M
EENEMAIZERDE SRR ER
BEMALTHEX  AEEERBDETH
REREH  FHREHRESHNRDE
THRERRERF > @ AAEREER
BeAkR  UAREZEARDHESRRE
EERE  EEERERDE S AMRKE
RBER - B HEBRBESRARES
MRFEINR  TEREARDESRREHE
BERBREERENESREREZR
EE N R o

S It

E/KFRITVROBABDT « 20145 5K

Analysis of credit risk concentration by the economic
sector of the respective financial assets is disclosed in
notes 10 to 15.

(b) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank's inability to fund an increase
in assets or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Bank has
established liquidity management policies for ensuring adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times.

Liquidity is managed day-to-day by the treasury under the
direction of ALMCO. ALMCO, which comprises personnel
from senior management, treasury function, risk management,
financial management and other business areas that could
affect liquidity risk, is responsible for overseeing the liquidity
risk management, in particular implementation of appropriate
liquidity policies and procedures, identifying, measuring and
monitoring liquidity risk, and control over the liquidity risk
management process. The Board of Directors approves the
liquidity risk strategy and policies, maintains continued awareness
of the overall liquidity risk profile, and ensures liquidity risk is
adequately managed and controlled by senior management
within the established risk management framework.
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(b) ZBELEBEE(Z)
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)

To cater for short term funding requirements during ordinary
course of business, sufficient liquid assets are held and also
access to the interbank market is maintained. In addition,
adequate standby facilities are maintained in order to meet any
unexpected and material cash outflow. The Bank also performs
regular stress tests on its liquidity position to ensure adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times. The following tables set
out the detail of the analysis of the Bank’s material assets and
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
periods at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

(i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the

o contractual maturity date
2014
18R 3f8A
R NEE  1ENE
3Rk 15k B55R
Over Over Over
DEE®  (EAR  fmonth 3months  lyer  SENE
Repayable ~ Within butwithin but within  but within Over  EHH 2]
ondemand  Tmonth 3 months fyear  Syears  Syears  Undated Total
(] Assets
ReREHS0RE  PEBREM Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
SEMETE other financial institutions 1,037,336 - - - - - - 1,037,336
THEHSRE - REOREL Placements with banks, central banks and other financial
SRBETE institutions - 478158 521516 809,633 - - - 1,809,307
E5%k Trade bills 2105 623 478 - - - - 13760
BERRAE Trading assets - - - - - - 1418 1478
EEET Advances to customers 175268 532,742 679,505 2,923305 7,138,538 10,469,921 - 21919.279
FHEAARENBATE Amounts due from parent company and fellow subsidiaries 757,917~ 4753592 1,192,208 1,437,859 = = - 811576
e SREE Avalable-for-sle financial assets - W13 134280 165788 92,243 85014 131071 1,645,526
AtAE Other assets 115395 41818 22217 18933 - 258 810,985 1,009,606
BEE Total assets 2,088,641 5959733 2,554,468 5355518 8,120,781 10,555,193 953,534 35,587,868
B Liabilities
FR%  rESIRAGLRER Deposits and balances of hanks, central banks and other
2 financial institutions 246 42,000 - - - - - 4426
RPER - £8  BEREMES Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of customers 12,037,210 6,607,230 525,001 6,344598 45,090 - - 30,286,129
BERRAR Trading liabiities - - - - - - 15838 15838
ERBADRANEL A FR Amounts due to parent company and fellow subsidiaries 920 23557 1,561,740 - - - - 1,586,217
A5E Other liabiltes 31803 28873 26700 210418 - - 3 ST
B8E Total liabiities 12,352,179 6,701,660 6,840,441 6,555,016 45,090 - 15841 32510227
F(BF)/EEEE Net (liability)/asset gap (10,263,538)  (741,927) (4,285973) (1,199,498) 8,075,691 10555193 937,693 3,077,641
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the

R(E) contractual maturity date (continued)
2013
1A 38R
bR NEE  1EHE
3fERR 1R {BSER
Over Over Qver
MEEZ 1EAR Tmonth  3months Tyerr  SENE
Repayable ~ Within  butwithin ~ butwithin  butwithin Over  E:H 2E
ondemand  Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
gE Assets
ReREHS0RE  FEBIREM Cash and balances with banks, central banks and other
HEENE financial insttutions 1,248,301 = = - = - - 1,248,301
THENSARE  PREORAL Placements with banks, central banks and other financial
SREEIE institutions - 619 685298 1626805 - = - 25378
8535 Trade bill 388 138715 10363 189 s - - 15339
BERRAE Trading assets - - - - - - 7,946 7,946
EFER Advances to customers 199845 525848 491850 2744645 6664730 8,864,354 - 19491276
RIFZER Advances to bank . - - . , _ _ _
FHBAARENBATE Amounts due from parent company and fellow subsiciaries 735311 2,002,224 393163 350,381 - - - 3481079
e AR Avallable-for-sale financial assets - M5O 294934 2308092 788258 81021 78929 3797228
REZIHARE Held-to-maturity investments - - - - - 51500 - 51500
AipEE Other assets 957 3%0 11,004 24976 - 258 541718 706533
BEE Total assets 22719812 3170420 1,886,704 7,055,388 7452990 8997133 628593 31,471,040
8f Liabilities
FORE  PRFOREMEBER Deposits and balances of hanks, central banks and other
2 financial institutions 2,166 - - - - - - 2,166
EPHR T8 BEREMER Current, ixed, savings and other deposits of customers 12,799,041 4526760 4,399,117 5078629 50,600 ] - 26,854,154
BEfRAR Trading liabilities = = = = = - 13655 13,655
ERSAARENEATZER Amounts due to parent company and fellow subsidiaries 1119 683710 515551 267804 - - - 1,468,184
EpaE Other liabilities 377,754 15,274 21863 145,782 - - 16 560,689
gaf Total liablities 13,180,080 5225744 4936531 5492215 50,600 7 13671 28,898,848
R(AR)/KEZE Net (iability)asset gap (10900268 (2,055324) (3,049827) 1563173 7402330 8997126 614322 257219
82 EBXTRITROBEMROTF . 201455
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(b) REBESEBER(HF) (b)
(i) KBSV IMEARTRAZASRE

24 Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)
(ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

TRINRAITREEBRIEITES
BEEREEMAE  REOHER
HREMX MR RE - AIRES
BENANLRFRBESRERK
B AHBETA SR B ENEMF
BIREH ENE S BEMEIR

The cash flows payable by the Bank for the non-derivative
financial liabilities including interest payable that will be
settled by remaining contractual maturities at the balance
sheet date are presented in the following table. The amounts
disclosed are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Interest payable in respect of term non-derivative

financial liabilities is reported based on contractual interest
payment date.

2014
138 3R
WEE HER  1ERE
3fEAR 15/ {B5ER
Over Over Over
MEEX  1BAA 1month  3months fyear  SEHNE
Repayable ~ Within butwithin  butwithin  but within Over g

ondemand  1month 3 months 1year Syears  Syears Total
HrEeRas Non-derivative financial liabilities
BIRE R BTREMARESE  Deposits and balances of banks, central banks and
pL:E other financial institutions 246 42,000 = = = - 6
BPAK- B8 BERAMEH Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of customers 12,037,210~ 6,633,527 5,297,946 6477276 45,089 - 30,491,048
BT EERFIE Interest payable on derivative financial instruments - 566 24 1,762 6,045 - 8,507
ERNSRERENBARZER Amounts due to parent company and fellow subsidiaries 90 23557 1,572,104 = = - 1,596,581
EaE Other liabilities 311,803 - - 159,871 - - 471,680
12,352,179 6,699,650 6,870,274 6,638,915 51,134 - 32,612,152
AR BT Unrecognised loan commitments 1,963,678 76,05 964,369 400436 561,303 - 3,965,842
fIATERERE Derivative cash flows
ITEERTA(RE2E) Derivative financial instruments (notional amount)
—@RA - total inflow - 21409 2,090,035 393,286 - - 2,697,411
B Vi - total outflow - USTT 2003204 392,966 - - 2701897
FRA Net inflow - (1,637) (3,169) 320 - - (4,486)
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24 B EREE 2) 24 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) REBELEMEIE(E) (b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) RBENIHERFE2BEERE (ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(&) (continued)

2013
18R 3fEA
LA JEE  1ENE
AR &R B5FR

QOver Over QOver
PEEX 1EAR Tmonth 3 months lyear  SEUE
Repayable Within ~ butwithn ~ butwithin ~ but within Over &5
ondemand  Tmonth  3months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
FiEoRARE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BORE HRETREMLREE  Deposits and balances of banks, central banks and
pa:E other financial institutions 2,166 - - - - - 2,166
RPER - ©f - HEREMER Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of customers 12,799,041 4544966 4434961 515949 50,600 726,989,071
TS BIAERTIS Interest payable on derivative financial instruments - 634 220 2,357 7112 1,440 11,763
EMRARRENBATZER Amounts due to parent company and fellow subsidiaries 1119 683,710 515992 268,328 - - 1,469,149
EfpafE Other liabilties 377,754 - - 119687 - - 497441
13,180,080 5229310 4,951,173 5,549,868 57,112 1,447 28,969,590
FEALEAE Unrecognised loan commitments 1,128,240 25863 142,115 499429 669,455 - 2,465,102
fIATERERE Derivative cash flows
ELBTE(Z54E) Derivative financial instruments (notional amount)
~8@REA - total inflow - 130,950 1,219,974 377,318 - - 1728242
-@nt - total outflow - 127,789 1,219,967 377,165 - - 172491
FiA Net inflow - 3,161 7 153 - - 3321
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management

Market risk is the risk arising from the movements in market
prices of on- and off-balance sheet positions in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates as well as equity and commodity prices
and the resulting change in the profit or loss or reserve of the
Bank.

The Bank is exposed to market risk on position taken or financial
instrument held or taken such as foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate contracts, fixed income and equity securities and
derivatives instruments.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the policies for the
management of market risks and trading authorities. The Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALMCO") has been
delegated the responsibility of controlling and monitoring market
risk including regular review of the risk exposures and the risk
management framework such as the established limits and stop-
losses. The limits are set by ALMCO and reviewed on a periodic
basis with reference to market conditions, with any material
changes requiring a review by the Board of Directors. It is the
Bank’s policy that no limit should be exceeded.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Bank's interest rate positions arise from treasury and
commercial banking activities. Interest rate risk primarily
results from the timing differences in the repricing of
interest-bearing assets, liabilities and commitments. It also
relates to positions from non-interest bearing liabilities
including shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well
as from certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Interest rate
risk is managed by the Financial Management Division within
limits approved by the Board. The Bank also uses interest rate
swaps and other derivatives to manage interest rate risk.

The Bank performs the Price Value of a Basis Point (“PVBP")
measurement quarterly to monitor and limit its interest rate
risk exposure. PVBP is a technique involving the calculation
of the change in present value of a financial instrument or a
portfolio of instruments due to a change of one basis point
in interest rates. It also provides a quick tool to evaluate the
impact on profit and loss due to a basis point movement in
interest rates.
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)

()

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Bank uses scenario analysis and stress test to assess the
banking book interest rate risk the Bank would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analysis and stress testing
are also devised to assess the impact on net interest income
arising from the optionality of demand and saving deposits,
the prepayment of mortgage loans and the prepayment of
debt securities with embedded options.

Interest rate sensitivity set out below is for risk management
reported to ALMCO only in simplified scenario, where
demand and saving deposits remain in the level as they
currently are and mortgage loans are serviced until their
original maturity. Actual changes in the Bank’s profit before
tax resulting from the change in interest rates may differ
from the result of the sensitivity analysis. The effect on
interest-bearing financial instruments and interest rate swaps
has been included in this calculation.

2014 2013
EF10EZ, Increase in 10 basis points 3,815 1,975
TRE10E2, Decrease in 10 basis points (3.815) (1,975)

BEUEMNERERRIZREESA
& BRERERESNERKERE
TEBERMEE - BEMENER

BROEERABERZESEE -

E/KFRITVROBABDT « 20145 5K

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the
deployment of non-interest bearing liabilities, including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well as from
certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Structural interest rate
risk is monitored by ALMCO.
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24 B EREE 2) 24 Financial risk management (continued)
() MEEKREIE(Z) (c) Market risk management (continued)
(i) AERBEERE) (i) Interest rate risk (continued)
TRETREZERAEERARNE The following tables indicate the expected next repricing

BT RFRERTA date for the assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date.

2014
3EAUL 150
B1FR B5%R
Over Over %8
3fAR 3 months 1 year SENE Non-
Within ~ but within  but within Over interest A%
3 months 1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total

§E Assets
BeREHNETRAE hR#MT  Cashand balances with banks, central banks

REME HEZR and other financial institutions 482,532 - - - 554,804 1,037,336
EHERBITRE - RRET Placements with banks, central banks and

REMERKETE other financial institutions 999,674 809,633 = = - 1,809,307
EpES Trade bills 13,760 - - - - 13,760
BERBREE Trading assets - - - - 11,478 11,478
REEZREMRE Advances to customers and other accounts 20,581,349 372,792 860,288 109,919 193,552 22,117,900
FHEARIRENEAR Amounts due from parent company and

A fellow subsidiaries 6,626,100 1,414,395 - - 101,081 8,141,576
REESRERE Available-for-sale financial assets 615,317 165,788 700,411 164,010 - 1,645,526
At ERE Others - - - - 810,985 810,985
wEE Total assets 29318732 2,762,608 1560699 273929 1671900 35587868
8% Liabilities
RARE - PR\TREAM Deposits and balances of banks, central

SREEIER banks and other financial institutions 42,000 - = = 2,246 44,246
EPAX - £ #ER Current, fixed, savings and other deposits

E bR of customers 22,053,366 6,344,594 45,455 - 1,642,714 30,286,129
EEARAR Trading liabilities - - - - 15,838 15,838
EREARREMBAR Amounts due to parent company and

2ER fellow subsidiaries 1,578,154 - - - 8,063 1,586,217
A& fE Others - - - - 577,797 577,797
maE Total liabilities 23,873,520 6,344,594 45,455 - 2,246,658 32,510,227
AZYREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 5445212 (3,581,986) 1,515,244 273929  (574,758) 3,077,641

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2014 87

(P:\jobs\04_ar\20150798 OCBC Wing Hang Bank AR2014\15c OCBC WHB AR2014_Notes)
2nd Proof ¢ 11 May 2015 ¢ 10:18 11/05/2015 ¢ 02C ¢ Page 87



MR RME

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LCEPTRFTIZT - Bathsp)

24 i ERMERE &)
(0 TEEBEEE)

(i) FREBERE)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

24 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

2013
3EALE 180 E
B1ER LT
Over Over %8
3EAA 3 months 1 year SENE Non-
Within -~ but within but within QOver interest 5l
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
gE Assets
BERGEHHRITRE  BRHKT  Cash and balances with banks, central banks
REME REETE and other financial institutions 460,145 - - - 788,156 1,248,301
THERRITAE - PRET Placements with banks, central banks and
REMSBEETE other financial institutions 906,977 1,626,805 - - - 2,533,782
BH%E Trade bills 153,395 - - - - 153,395
BEERREE Trading assets = = = = 7,946 7,946
REERREMEE Advances to customers and other accounts 18,304,037 379,913 665,748 126,215 180,178 19,656,091
BIREER Advances to bank - - - _ - _
FHEARRENBAR Amounts due from parent company and
U fellow subsidiaries 3,050,908 339,900 - - 90,271 3,481,079
AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 734,474 2,308,093 594,711 159,950 - 3,797,228
BEZIHARE Held-to-maturity investments = = 51,500 = = 51,500
At ERE Others - - - - 541,718 541,718
wEE Total assets 23609936 4654711 1,311,959 286,165 1,608,269 31,471,040
8% Liabilities
RARE - PR\TREAM Deposits and balances of banks, central banks
SREEIER and other financial institutions - - - - 2,166 2,166
EPAX - £ #ER Current, fixed, savings and other deposits
E bR of customers 20,133,882 5,078,622 50,934 15 1,590,701 26,854,154
EEARAR Trading liabilities = = = = 13,655 13,655
ERBARRENRBAR Amounts due to parent company and
pax fellow subsidiaries 1,198,145 267,800 - - 2,239 1,468,184
A& fE Others - - - - 560,689 560,689
B Total liablities 21332,007 5346422 50,934 15 2,169,450 28,898,848
AZYREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 2,277,909 (691,711) 1,261,025 286,150 (561,181) 2,572,192
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)

NEEBEE(EZ) (i) Interest rate risk (continued)
TRBERKFEE 2 EBRFIR : The following table indicates the effective interest rates for
the year:
2014 2013

EEATFIRERTTRIZE ~ R ARERTT  Placement with banks, central banks and

Ko B Ath & B A TRIR other financial institutions 2.43% 1.58%
BEOZEBERRFER Trade bills and advances to customers 3.03% 2.97%
TREE Financial assets 2.09% 1.99%
RITRAIZE ~ RRIRTT R E A Deposits and balances of banks, central

DR 2 17 banks and other financial institutions 1.13% 0.39%
BEPERX Deposits from customers 1.14% 0.89%
EmEEEE (ii) Currency risk management

AITHSMNERRIR B SNEB B M
KIRITED - MBINER BB
EMRBECEZTSIIENRAEE

o

il

HRATABNEERABEINE
FIts - BB RETHEE  mE=&
Bl ALEEETRANT
FHEEAEEER - A TRRER
BBk :

The Bank's foreign exchange positions arise from foreign

exchange dealing, commercial banking operations. All

foreign exchange positions are managed by the Treasury
Department within limits approved by the Board of Directors.

The directors do not consider the Bank to have significant
foreign currency risk as the majority of the Bank's assets

and liabilities are denominated in Macau patacas, Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars, which are pegged to
each other. The exposure at the balance sheet date was as

follows:
2014
B B EpT Hith &5t
MOP HKD usD Others Total
BEE Total assets 28.7% 44.6% 6.3% 20.4% 100%
HwaE Total liabilities 31.3% 42% 4.2% 22.5% 100%
Dk Net position (2.6)% 2.6% 2.1% (2.1)% =
2013
Pl ot E7T H &&F
MOP HKD usb Others Total
EEE Total assets 31.3% 47 3% 7.5% 13.9% 100%
SN Total liabilities 34.4% 44.6% 6.7% 14.3% 100%
x| Net position (3.1)% 2.7% 0.8% (0.4)% -
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(d)

(e)

EERKRER
EERBIEREANDEF TSR
W ABIBK - RGHESKINRE
SIBEE Rk o

RITPAEZ 2 R EIRRBERRNE
FIEE EiEH kR - HEE R RETZ
ERATaRERE-—BMBzHaiER
[\ =8 o

HREBEEREITEE EABEK
REMALESBMT2 B - ZFHE
HEREEEMRE 2 EEEZES
BE  ERLHEE  ZFZESEME
TiE - ARERARRES IR Z HEIE - I
BRI A T ROERI T -

FHN - RITH) R BPFE X BBPTE 1T E Bt
A BEAITRBEZERG KM © %
BMAMEEEER - NEREKFEBIE
BRI -

EXEE

FITHERRERGFEREAR » RZH
RITEBER  UZEIEENELRT
RUEERBER - RITEARNEENEEZAR
B BRTNARMLERNERRERE
CERYERRREBENRTEIN B
BRERTERAFELE - EMESF
TE E2 2 B 7K ST AR 7 O 2 am M BRAS (B A8 IA
RAAEERESRENSN B8R
PR R @R - I AEAMARREA LR

Mk e

RITEBE SR MEREEARER
AR AR AR RIS RE S
PR R [0 e SR AR 2 B AR PR A (B 2
FRIE M E ARG T8 - W EREE
BREEMBABREALEE - ERHE
& mENEESZRARMBREEARE
Ke#  ERBRMISERRIINERE
B2ER(EEREAHE )R
KMaHE o

RITIR & EFS P A< AR KD B
BR - NI EFEBRFINEESER
AEEEMTEMHEHENERENK - B
HZE2014F N2013F12A31HIE&F
B AIBEET—YINRAIENEARE
X RBRPIREBEEERNRIER
TE L o
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

24 Financial risk management (continued)

(d)

(e)

Operational risk management

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events.

The Bank’s risk management framework is established to control
risks at both corporate and departmental levels. The underlying
management principle is built upon a longstanding culture of
high integrity and risk awareness fostered by senior executives of
the Bank.

The framework consists of governing policies with control
measures to ascertain absolute compliance by all operating units.
These measures are directed, controlled and held to account
by operational management committees chaired by senior
executives. Regular reviews are performed by the committees
to ensure proper functioning of internal controls and to identify
improvement opportunities.

Furthermore, independent reviews are conducted by the Bank's
Internal Audit Department to measure the effectiveness of the
Bank’s system of internal controls. This department reports to the
Supervisory Council to ensure the framework is managed with
high standards.

Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of the Bank’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. In addition to meeting the
AMCM requirements and the HKMA requirements on group
basis for its parent company, the Bank’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Bank actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. The amount of minimum
capital requirements held for credit, market and operational risks
is calculated in accordance with the AMCM regulation and Basel
Il requirements under HKMA regulation.

Capital is allocated to the various activities of the Bank depending
on the risk taken by each business division. The Bank is subject
to the capital requirements of the AMCM and the HKMA for
their regulatory supervision purposes. The Bank has complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 and are well above the
minimum required ratio set by the AMCM and HKMA.
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25 Fair values
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

25 A EE
(a) BAFEEIRz2EBTE

SERATEEAENERTIAREER
BERBREEMEE UKD BE/AHEH
ENERMTH -

NHEERFERES R T AR
HEATSERRE B ERREEL - B
—REIEN - TR TR FEER
EHABLNTEE  ERRRTAHEE
FrERmMEEHIR -

i) F1ER: 2EZHRTARKE
Jh BB T 35 BX 15 1O T 45 R B (R4

).

FAl
o]

(i) 2% - ERBBREIERNT
S ERE AN ] E R B BUR (B
BER)EERBERBER(ANRAE
%) - EEEFRERBATHE
FTHAMTE : ARATARIRIER
MENMERE  HEXFBETA
ERXENERTISNRE  H
BERENX  MHEEFMANER
BB 2 T B K R R AT T 5 8
EFSHER o

FIFH  BRYFENABRERED
BHENEEXLRBEHE (A
SMBUR) - EEFAREIFINT
BEMSERNEEBERAEERDN
PIAETER  MAAEENEIEA &
TAGBEBRKEATZE - BEZR
BEBERATEETENTA
2ERBTANMSHRE  1LF
REHERANTATEENFABRLR
& URBTARTANER -

(iii)

Financial instruments measured at fair value on an ongoing basis
include trading assets and liabilities and financial instruments

classified as available-for-sale.

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy

that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the

measurements:

0)

(if)

(iii)

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active
market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for
similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active;
or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable market data and
the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments
that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the
instruments.
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(a) ZAFEEIKZERMTA(E)

ERRERTERZNERTARRE
MEREXRIIEREAEE A FE
B ERFBYFNRFEARMERS
MEMESRTE  RTEAMBERIK
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RNHEE NRBREBMTAERS AL
B MZERAKKAEFRATSS
HEENFRZEM DREFRERE -
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IR R RIERAER L -

HEEBAARZRARATEENTELEE
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B dBLEBHNRFEEREZEH
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

25 Fair values (continued)
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

Fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations. For all other financial instruments that are not traded
in the active markets, the Bank determines fair values using
valuation techniques. The objective of valuation techniques is
to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of
the financial instrument at the reporting date that would have
been determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.
Valuation techniques may include net present value of expected
future cash flows, market comparables, share of net assets value
and option pricing models. Selection of valuation techniques
depends on the availability of data and their relevance.

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. Hence, the reliability of the fair values measurement
is high. However, certain financial instruments are valued on
the basis of one or more significant market inputs that are not
observable. The fair value derived is more judgemental. “Not
observable” does not mean there is absolutely no market data
available but there is little or no current market data available
from which to determine the level at which an arm’s length
transaction would likely occur. Examples of observable inputs
include foreign exchange spot and forward rates, benchmark
interest rate curves and volatility surfaces for commonly traded
option products. Examples of unobservable inputs include
volatility surfaces for less commonly traded option products,
correlations between market factors and the financial data of the
invested companies.

Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces
the need for management judgement and estimation and also
reduces the valuation uncertainty associated with determination
of fair values. The availability varies depending on the products
and markets and is prone to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

For more complex instruments, the Bank uses the broker pricing
service, which adopts proprietary valuation models, as inputs to
a fair value measurement. These models usually are developed
from recognised valuation models across the industry with some
or all of the inputs into these models being unobservable in the
market.
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25 Fair values (continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

Fair values are subject to a control framework that aims to ensure
that they are either determined, or validated, by a function
independent of the risk-taker. To this end, ultimate responsibility
for the determination of fair values lies with Middle Office.
Middle Office establishes procedures governing valuation, and
is responsible for ensuring that these comply with all relevant
accounting standards.

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair
value at the balance sheet date according to the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which they are categorised.

2014
Recurring fair value F1ER H2ER HIER A%
REMALEETE measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
BEEABREE Trading assets
- BERBHITESRT - Positive fair values of derivative
AZIERATFEE financial instruments
held for trading - 11,478 - 11,478
A ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
- BINES — Treasury bills - 189,927 - 189,927
- HipEBES — Other debt securities 1,166,699 157,829 - 1,324,528
- ETRE — Listed equity securities 29,916 7,838 = 37,754
- JEETIRE — Unlisted equity securities - - 93,317 93,317
1,196,615 355,594 93,317 1,645,526
afE Liabilities
BEEASLAE Trading liabilities
- BERMBRITESBT - Negative fair values of
BZBRNTEE derivative financial
instruments held for trading - 15,838 - 15,838
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(a) ZAFEEIKZERMTA(E)

25 Fair values (continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

2013
Recurring fair value FER F2ER FE3IFR =
BREHAFLEETE measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
EERAREE Trading assets
-BEERBITESBT - Positive fair values of derivative
BZIERTFEE financial instruments
held for trading - 7,946 — 7,946
AHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
- BES — Treasury bills - 2,588,490 - 2,588,490
- HipEE S — Other debt securities 1,114,509 15,300 - 1,129,809
- ERE — Listed equity securities 24,971 7,507 32,478 37,754
- ETRE — Unlisted equity securities - - 46,451 46,451
1,139,480 2,611,297 46,451 3,797,228
afE Liabilities
EEASAE Trading liabilities
-BERBITESBT - Negative fair values of
BZBRTEE derivative financial
instruments held for trading - 13,655 — 13,655

(i) SB1ERRAF2ERK2AVEE
RAFE @R TAWEENFE
ENSI1EREF2ER2EIELE
RER o

72013 % 20144 [E H9fE - WHELE
HEMEE  BAOKBEEFEIE
THRNTFEENSHITEREA
EHAMATFEEEISHANSH
TH-
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(i) Level 1 and 2 fair value
During the year, there were no significant transfer of
financial instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy.

During the years of 2014 and 2013, there were no
purchases, sales, issues or settlements of financial
instruments categorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
or transfer into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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(i) E3ER/ZAFEE

Fair values (continued)
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(ii) Level 3 fair values

FI3FER N FEEZHER Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
THRINTEAFEEFEIZEHZA The following table shows a reconciliation from the
T EEFEHVES REBRESRZ beginning balance to the ending balances for fair value
HERRK measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
AHEELHMEE-RE
Available for sale
financial assets — equity
2014 2013
BE Assets
1H1B&% At 1 January 46,451 46,451
REMEEKRERZ Changes in fair value recognised
N EEED in the other comprehensive income 46,866 -
12 31 H &% At 31 December 93,317 46,451

REM2ERSERS AT EES
B2 A A G [ R A B R M

%4 o

(i) RERETABENRREDES
BRITTZABBRMEL2FE

EREFBRT  tESBRTARF
EBEMANGBERL  EFmEs
E’JT““]UHMJ’E*HHIE!E’JEEHI
BIEMSEXHER - TIREEM
ABEMEER - TRIIRESS
Eﬁ&ﬁ’]’“?ﬁfﬁ@ﬁ(@“ﬁ - NREAA

BEATHASABRKRMELDN
ft CB10%MEEMALITEE

Changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive

income in 2014 is due to the change in valuation

methodology during the year.
(iii) Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions
to reasonably possible alternatives:
The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain
circumstances, measured using valuation models that
incorporate assumptions that are not supported by prices
from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument and are not based on observable market data.
The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values in
Level 3 due to parallel movement of plus or minus 10 per
cent of change in fair value to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions.

2014 2013
RRARRER R R 2

Reflected in equity Reflected in equity
BRES R Eg BB THIEE
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
changes changes changes changes

MHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets

- kRE - Equity securities 9,332 (9,332) 4,645 (4,645)
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25 Fair values (continued)
(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value
The carrying amount of the Bank’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2014.

2014
REE A2AFEE H15R  F2858  HEFR
Carrying
value Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

BEZEHBERE Held-to-maturity investments

- EBHE S — Debt securities = = = = =
2013
FEE ATEE F15 F25/ FEFR
Carrying

value Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

FEZIHAKRE Held-to-maturity investments
- EBES - Debt securities 51,500 51,190 - 51,190 =

RITHATITNERBEERR © UEE
TRIAZATEE-

() EEREMTAZRAFEE  BHRE
REHEEKEERS - ARARZE
ERBFEREREERATEE
TR EERESBRRERT DR T
AR A E X FEEERRE
EERE2HE -

26 HEEBQAFAIRBEARERRDF

f£2014F128318  EERAEATHNEE
AR REEIEBR AR D B BEGBKFIRIT
BRAGE  —REBBEMEKIHAF] - A
MEFGRITER AT - — RN M
SMHAT] o BEAR NS T AEARBR
BB SR o
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The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented in above.

(i) the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments is assumed
to approximate their carrying amounts and reflect changes in
their credit quality, as the impact of credit risk is recognised
separately by deducting the amount of the impairment loss
and allowances from both the carrying amount and fair
value.

26 Immediate parent and ultimate controlling
party
At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Bank to be OCBC Wing Hang
Bank Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and Oversea-
Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, which is incorporated in
Singapore respectively. These entities produce financial statements
available for public use.
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N T AREEZMBEEMEE - ERTARME
BMEERBEL 2B ER TR MRS -

Q) BEEAEE T ERERLE

The following unaudited disclosures of financial information are prepared
to comply with the Guideline on the Disclosure of Financial Information
issued by the Monetary Authority of Macao.

(a)Capital adequacy ratio of top consolidated
group

EF/KTRITER
Group
2014 2013
M12A31A 28 AT B E(HE)  Capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December
(Note) 15.9% 15.9%
SRS ERIRRBREBIRTE(HEE)HAE The calculation of the regulatory capital and capital charges of the top

S
HEBEEARBAENR -

(H3E) B E2014F 12 A3 BRSO GEAEE2EER
RITARADR > MEE2013F12A318 B SE4E
ERIEEFXKFTRITAMAR - EFRITERAAR
2014F7 A29 B WIEE B K FRITAERRAI2E - B
KRREGXFRITARDREARNTIZERIFA S
°

consolidated group are in accordance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules of Hong Kong.

(Note) The top consolidated group as at 31 December 2014 refers to Oversea-
Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, while the top consolidated group as at 31
December 2013 refers to OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited. Oversea-Chinese Banking
Corporation Limited has replaced OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited as the top
consolidated group of the Bank after the acquisition of OCBC Wing Hang Bank on 29
July 2014.
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Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(b) EAEL 7 4H B 012 (b)Components of own funds
2014 2013
EXHEEE: Core capital:
BHE KR Paid-up share capital 120,000 120,000
EEEES RRERBEEZ Legal, statutory and other reserves created
e REMARD BB ERFTEMK by appropriation of retained profits
ZEES 304,200 304,200
BRRTE Profits brought forward 1,521,073 1,296,851
WEFE RGBT Current year net profits 180,134 192,688
HEABBEES A% Total core capital 2,125,407 1,913,739
BrEEES: Supplementary capital:
HAPEEHMEZEES Reserves on revaluation of own premises 51,610 51,610
—REHS General provision 221,740 197,538
%@}Eﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%‘gﬁ Total supplementary capital 273,350 249,148
HRER : Deduction: = =
KMBIERRZEEES B Total own funds after deduction 2,398,757 2,162,887
MRIEE Rz BERERERBRE S IR The calculation on the components and total amount of own funds
FRORMISREIEFFE012/9357 @4 )R AlAT after deduction is in accordance with Notice No. 012/93-AMCM.

98 E/KFRITVROBABDT « 20145 5K

(P:\jobs\04_ar\20150798 OCBC Wing Hang Bank AR2014\16 OCBC WHB AR2014_Disclosure)
2nd Proof ¢ 11 May 2015 ¢ 10:18 11/05/2015 ¢ 02C ¢ Page 98



(c) ESBED (c) Solvency

(i) ENEEHLE=R (i) Solvency ratio
2014 2013
W12 A31 BEREE N LR Solvency ratio as at 31 December (before
(RETEMEAEERRL XERN) market and operational risk ratio) 12.5% 12.8%
W12 A31BERE N L= Solvency ratio as at 31 December 11.8% 12.0%
ZRCRFISRMEEBFE002/20115% 8 The calculation on the solvency ratio is in accordance with Notice
EYRAGEEMEE L E - No. 002/2011-AMCM.
(ii) MIEFEEZEARER (ii) Market risk capital requirement
2014 2013
mERRER 2 EXK The market risk capital requirements for
— M@ — Interest rate risk - -
— iR #E A b — Equity position risk = -
— HNGE R Bg - Foreign exchange risk 2,603 10,901
— B — Commodity risk - _
NN#ETH 35 &\ b 48 58 Weighted market risk exposures 2,603 10,901
(dEERK (d)Credit risk
() RHWESBEZEFERDM (i) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to customers
2014
2R
EFER
(Z@EAKE) WEER & BIRE BEEHE
BEFEXR Overdue (fABIEF) % 5
#% loans and Impaired Individually Collectively
Gross advances loans assessed assessed
loans and (over (individually impairment impairment

advances 3 months) determined) allowances allowances

SE P Macau 19,999,449 34,045 26,193 23,421 7,143
) Hong Kong 1,441,289 - = — 515
F B i China 485,880 = = - 174
Efh Other 23,923 = - - 9

21,950,541 34,045 26,193 23,421 7,841
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

d)EERkE @) (d)Credit risk (continued)
(i) BRHWEQE2EFERDWN(E) (i) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to customers
(continued)
2013

2B

BFER
(ZEALAL) MEE R 18 B A E BERE
BEFEX Overdue  (fERBIEF) A A
k] loans and Impaired  Individually  Collectively
Gross advances loans assessed assessed
loans and (over  (individually  impairment  impairment

advances 3 months)  determined) allowances allowances

YR PY Macau 17,309,623 26,496 25,286 1,633 7,359
i Hong Kong 1,585,529 = - - 674
B A3 China 415,124 - - - 176
Hit Other 190,924 - - - 82
19,501,200 26,496 25,286 1,633 8,291
VA M 538 2 S IR E SR A Z FT1E The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the
WIrEBEREERREER - —MmE borrowers after taking into account the transfer of risk. In general,
EEMER 2 BERESITIFERAME risk transfer applies when a loan is guaranteed by a party situated in
2 —AEREEEBZRR an area different from the counterparty.
(i) BB B2BERESZDIN (ii) Geographical analysis of debt securities
2014 2013
1 BB B 214 18 Rl R (B 2E
Individually Individually
R E B assessed IR EE assessed
Carrying impairment Carrying impairment
amount allowances amount allowances
B Hong Kong 548,005 - 619,231 =
Hihgs A& Rest of Asia-Pacific 739,045 - 3,000,932 -
=M Americas 86,151 = 92,796 =
Hth Other 141,254 - 56,840 -
1,514,455 - 3,769,799 -
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(d)%'ﬁ@”‘ﬁ(%) (d)Credit risk (continued)

(i) REAEAZSANEHA L 2B e (iii) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based on
HRE2 2@ EERAEEB VIR the residual contractual maturity at the balance sheet date
DR

2014
18R 3f8R

LB RER  1ENE
3EAM 18R {B3%R

Over Over Over
MEBZ  1EAA  1month 3 months fyear  3ENUE EHH
Repayable Within  but within  but within  but within Over Indefinite &g
ondemand  1month 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
EE Assets
ZHZRREPET  Trade bills, loans and advances
to customers 177,993 539,036 684,247 2,923,305 4,325,848 13,282,610 - 21,933,039
Be REHHM Cash and balances with and
BES loans and advances to banks 1,037,336 - - - - - - 1,037,336
BEFHTR/HEF  Securities issued by Macao SAR
SHEEREEZES  Government andlor AMCM - 69,999 69,986 49,94 - - - 189,927
% Other securities - 71131 64,204 115846 982,243 85014 131,071 1455599
af Liabilities
RIAER Deposits and balances of banks
A e REEER and finandial institutions 2246 42,000 - = - = - 44,246
RERERR Deposits from public sector
entities 692 - 188,225 1,254,424 - - - 1,443,341
PEREEBEARGER  Deposits from holding and
associated companies 920 23,557 1,561,740 - - - - 1,586,217
FFTAEEPFR Deposits from non-bank
customers 12,036,518 6,607,230 5,063,776 5,090,174 44,898 192 - 28,842,788
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(d)EEmBE =) (d)Credit risk (continued)

(i) REAERZESHNEHA L 2Bk (iii) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based on
HREDZENEEREEEB NWER the residual contractual maturity at the balance sheet date
PWR(E) (continued)

2013

1A 3f@A
U] BHR  1EME
AR 17 {B3FR

QOver Over QOver
BEEx (AR 1month 3 months Tyear  3FHLE S
Repayable Within -~ but within ~ but within ~ but within Over  Indefinite k)
on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
EE Assets
Z5EBEREFEST Trade bills, loans and advances
to customers 203,673 664,563 502,215 2,745,134 3,633,397 11,895,689 - 19,644,671
BE REHIRT Cash and balances with and loans
FEHE and advances to banks 1,248,301 = - - - - - 1,248,301
mBFIMTR,/HRM  Securities issued by Macao SAR
LREEREEZES  Government and/or AMCM - 245,994 294,934 2,047,562 - - - 2,588,490
£ B% Other securites - - - 260530 122014 798765 78929 1260238
af Liabilities
EGIEEIS Deposits and balances of banks
At S RERER and financial institutions 2,166 - = = = - . 2166
RERERN Deposits from public sector
entities 6,025 6,057 49,546 885,200 - - - 946,828
PEREBEARGER  Deposits from holding and
associated companies 1,119 683,710 515,551 267,804 - - - 1,468,184
FRTAEEPFR Deposits from non-bank
customers 12,793,016 4,520,703 4,349,571 4,193,429 50,363 244 - 25,907,326
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(e) FMEE R B

(e)Foreign exchange risk

2014
AR® Hitt g
BP9 T #5t  Chinese E7T Other P
MOP HK$ Renminbi US$ currencies Total
FREERE Total net long positions 290,936 - 729 15,348 1,860 308,873
RO RRAAEE Total net short positions - 308,520 - - 353 308,873
2013
AR Hibh B
BPITT BT Chinese e Other BF
MOP HK$  Renminbi US$ currencies Total
FREBEEE Total net long positions = 42,655 9,421 = 1,460 53,536
FEE AR Total net short positions 51,029 - - 2,105 402 53,536
2014
AR%
BT Chinese E3 as
HK$ Renminbi uss Total
BEEE Spot assets 15,867,098 6,158,686 2,240,047 24,265,831
BEEE Spot liabilities 14,942,530 6,907,629 1,503,629 23,353,788
REAB A Forward purchases 174,492 1,182,089 638,247 1,994,828
RHIEH Forward sales 1,407,580 432,417 1,359,317 3,199,314
BRI Net option positions - - = =
£,/ (5 )#8 %%  Net long/(short) positions (308,520) 729 15,348 (292,443)
2013
AR
BT Chinese ETT =
HK$ Renminbi us$ Total
REBE Spot assets 14,892,881 3,329,267 2,358,805 20,580,953
REAE Spot liabilities 14,047,518 3,450,796 2,093,352 19,591,666
RHIBEA Forward purchases 397,292 264,836 129,386 791,514
T L Forward sales 1,200,000 133,886 396,944 1,730,830
MR BFE Net option positions - - - _
/(5 )#8&%% Netlong/(short) positions 42,655 9,421 (2,105) 49,971
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(f) REBIE £ R (f) Liquidity risk

2014 2013
FRAYHRKIRES &S Average minimum weekly cash in hand 669,324 598,487
BRTHESER Average weekly cash in hand 923,642 853,472
FAFHERERDEE Average month-end specified liquid assets 9,480,973 8,506,829
2014 2013
% %

FAFHREREEENA Average month-end ratio of specified liquid
ERE B X assets to total basic liabilities 33.0 33.7
—(EAFEERBESLLE Average one-month liquidity ratio 43.0 42.7
= @A FERSERLE Average three-months liquidity ratio 38.8 38.0
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(QEESEXR(RERMESMERE
B TR E 2 REE )
BEAMEN-B-NE+=A=+-8

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
format established by the AMCM)
BALANGO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2014

P
MOP
BRS
WEMRE
PROVISOES,
EEME AMORTIZACOES E BESHE

BEE ACTIVO ACTIVO BRUTO MENOS - VALIAS ACTIVO LIQUIDO
Re CAIXA 376,851,572 376,851,572
AMCMTFFR DEPOSITOS NA AMCM 473,453,091 473,453,091
FEWERIE VALORES A COBRAR 337,076,772 337,076,772
TR 2 FA A5 At DEPOSITOS A ORDEM NOUTRAS INSTITUICOES DE

EEE CREDITO NO TERRITORIO 20,008,313 20,008,313
TEONE 2 BA A5 Pt DEPOSITOS A ORDEM NO EXTERIOR

EEES 772,855,045 772,855,045
T iR OURO E PRATA
Hitneh & E OUTROS VALORES
HGR CREDITO CONCEDIDO 21,824,734,488 3,067,800  21,821,666,688
TEASR{E BB APLICACOES EM INSTITUICOES DE CREDITO NO

TERRITORIO 1,190,295,832 1,190,295,832

TESMBE KB 2 B R DEPOSITOS COM PRE-AVISO E A PRAZO NO

EEER EXTERIOR 8,211,053,121 8,211,053,121
RE -« F5 N AE ACCOES, OBRIGACOES E QUOTAS 1,279,244,215 - 1,279,244,215
REESRE APLICACOES DE RECURSOS CONSIGNADOS
BEEA DEVEDORES 4,076,821 4,076,821
Hipig& OUTRAS APLICACOES 87,769,438 87,769,438
MEIRE PARTICIPACOES FINANCEIRAS 36,768,219 36,768,219
TEYE IMOVEIS 803,308,468 33,680,413 769,628,055
B EQUIPAMENTO 165,006,642 123,649,238 41,357,404
EXEER CUSTOS PLURIENAIS
R e A DESPESAS DE INSTALACAO
R B E IMOBILIZACOES EM CURSO
HiEEEE OUTROS VALORES IMOBILIZADOS
AR EEESE CONTAS INTERNAS E DE REGULARIZACAO 123,636,627 123,636,627
aE TOTAIS 35,706,138,664 160,397,451  35,545,741,213
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(Q)EEEER(BERMLEMEE (g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
B EZEERR) &) format established by the AMCM) (continued)
EEEBERR-Z—NE+=-A=+—8H BALANCO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2014 (continued)

(%)
P
MOP
NN B
=L PASSIVO SUB-TOTAIS TOTAIS
EEGER N DEPOSITOS A ORDEM 12,073,849,560
BEANTFR DEPOSITOS C/PRE-AVISO
TEHATF K DEPOSITOS A PRAZO 16,788,693,971
NHBEETR DEPOSITOS DE SECTOR PUBLICO 1,443,341,963 30,305,885,494
AHERAKEES RECURSOS DE INSTITUICOES DE CREDITO NO
TERRITORIO 42,344,021
Hih N iEE S RECURSOS DE OUTRAS ENTIDADES LOCAIS
HNEEFE R EMPRESTIMOS EM MOEDAS EXTERNAS 1,580,757,330
BHER EMPRESTIMOS POR OBRIGACOES
EEESEEA CREDORES POR RECURSOS CONSIGNADOS
ERNZERRE CHEQUES E ORDENS A PAGAR 77,428,593
fEEA CREDORES 61,047,308
XBEEE EXIGIBILIDADES DIVERSAS 32,797,189 1,794,374,441
AEYSERES CONTAS INTERNAS E DE REGULARIZACAO 339,646,347
FERRER® PROVISOES PARA RISCOS DIVERSOS 7,840,181
[N CAPITAL 120,000,000
EERE RESERVA LEGAL 120,000,000
Eha1 RESERVA ESTATUTARIA 184,200,000
EhHEE RESERVA DE REAVALIACAO 633,173,695
H b *OUTRAS RESERVAS 190,674,143  1,248,047,838
BEEELSL RESULTADOS TRANSITADOS DE EXERCICIOS
ANTERIORES 1,521,072,689
RELFEER RESULTADO DO EXERCICIO 328,874,223  1,849,946,912
k] TOTAIS 35,545,741,213
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(Q)EEEER(BERMLEMEE (g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
B EZEERR) &) format established by the AMCM) (continued)
EEEBERR-Z—NE+=-A=+—8H BALANCO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2014 (continued)
(%)

—MERERS - BITEACRMIMBEHRE%E
AN HmHFEMBRERMTIRETORE L -
BREREEE A EERIZ(E18/93 - AMCMSR
BE)RENSKEKTEH-—REABRERS -
BITERL —SHERZEEKFEHERASSR
BEEEEZENSB(CERETERBRMK
23,225,562 EREE R - ZILBRERSER
BEMEANBETERINTE [IRESRERE
ErESENERS | WEEREAFENH
HERAMWEE RSB - A [BRBERET | ERES
RMEBREZHEFNEN [FEXE I 2MNAE
HBSIR °

ik Hi e 2RI 190,674,143 TH) *  As Outras Reservas incluem uma reserva obrigatéria no montante de

190,674,143 Patacas. Porque o Banco adopta as Normas de Relato Financeiro
de Macau na preparacao das suas demonstracoes financeiras anuais, as perdas
de imparidade com base nas NRFM podem ser inferiores ao nivel minimo de
provisdes genéricas calculadas de acordo com o Aviso 18/93 da AMCM (o
nivel minimo). A referida reserva obrigatéria representa, pois, a diferenca entre
o nivel minimo e as perdas de imparidade nos termos das NRFM (antes dos
impostos diferidos de 23,225,562 Patacas). Este mesmo montante, inscrito
na linha <Dotacbes adicionais para provisdes conforme RJSF) da Conta de
Lucros e Perdas das contas resumidas, est4 reconciliado entre o {Lucro depois
de impostos) e os {Resultados do ano) de acordo com as regras da RJSF na
Conta de exploracao das demonstracoes financeiras auditadas anuais.

P
MOP
-}
BER CONTAS EXTRAPATRIMONIAIS MONTANTE
RERER VALORES RECEBIDOS EM DEPOSITO 7,179,292,014
R ER VALORES RECEBIDOS PARA COBRANCA 15,569,455
AR VALORES RECEBIDOS EM CAUCAO 38,513,581,840
IR RERFT R GARANTIAS E AVALES PRESTADOS 184,368,027
=Rk CREDITOS ABERTOS 46,530,300
G ER ACEITES EM CIRCULACAO 73,950,090
RIFRES VALORES DADOS EM CAUCAO
HEEA COMPRAS A PRAZO 3,194,827,243
HEEH VENDAS A PRAZO 3,199,313,813
HibEHER OUTRAS CONTAS EXTRAPATRIMONIAIS 1,275,699,051
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(hEEXR(RERMESMEER AN

(h)Profit and loss account (in accordance with

REZIZERKR) standard format established by the AMCM)
“E-NEEELRER DEMONSTRACAO DE RESULTADOS DO EXERCICIO DE 2014
EXERE CONTA DE EXPLORAGCAO
P
MOP
X -
&R Débito MONTANTE &7 Crébito MONTANTE
BEZEBKA CUSTOS DE OPERACOES 335,265,821 EEZKE PROVEITOS DE 819,441,989
PASSIVAS OPERACOES ACTIVAS
AEEH CUSTOS COM PESSOAL SRITARIS W= PROVEITOS DE SERVICOS 113,376,698
BANCARIOS
E=-9Y REMUNERACOES DOS 240,000 EfbiR7T PROVEITOS DE OUTRAS 30,529,335
ERefE ORGAOS DE GESTAO E EFE e OPERACOES
FISCALIZACAO BANCARIAS
BEMX: REMUNERACOES DE 118,659,490 FE5 K RENDIMENTOS DE 71,561,161
EMPREGADOS B 7515 & g TITULOS DE CREDITO
E DE PARTICIPACOES
FINANCEIRAS
BEEBEEH  ENCARGOS SOCIAIS 44,812,501 HhiRrTzs OUTROS PROVEITOS 32,944,422
BANCARIOS
HMAZEER  OUTROS CUSTOS COM O 1,163,798 JEIEFEEURE  PROVEITOS INORGANICOS 72,170
PESSOAL
FE=FVEL ZtFE FORNECIMENTOS DE 11,894,626
TERCEIROS
F=FIRM 7B SERVICOS DE TERCEIROS 49,757,792
HMRTEA OUTROS CUSTOS 69,422,193
BANCARIOS
HIE IMPOSTOS 933,518
SEEEEMER  CUSTOS INORGANICOS 1,139,289
ERK DOTACOES PARA 26,773,005
AMORTIZACOES
HRE 2B DOTACOES PARA 882,833
PROVISOES
e LUCRO DA EXPLORACAO 406,980,909
Rk TOTAIS 1,067,925,775 #2%8 TOTAIS 1,067,925,775
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(hWEZR(BRBRMERMEER
BREZBE®KRN) 2

(h)Profit and loss account (in accordance with
standard format established by the AMCM)

(continued)

BaEtER CONTA DE LUCROS E PERDAS
B
MOP
ok -
&R Débito MONTANTE E% Crébito MONTANTE
BEIBK PREJUIZO DE BEFE LUCRO DE EXPLORACAQ 406,980,909
EXPLORACAO
BE2EX PERDAS RELATIVAS 2,719,583 [FF 2 FiE LUCROS RELATIVOS 882,833
A EXERCICIOS A EXERCICIOS
ANTERIORES ANTERIORES
FFRIE K PERDAS EXCEPCIONAIS R F LUCROS EXCEPCIONAIS
EEMREZ DOTAGCOES PARA 51,694,519 EAEZEH PROVISOES UTILIZADAS 2,719,583
IR RE R IMPOSTOS SOBRE
LUCROS DO EXERCICIO
RIEE e X A2 DOTACOES ADICIONAIS 27,295,000
FIFSIEHSHIHEA  PARA PROVISOES
Kid CONFORME RISF
EELFE(AR)  RESULTADO DO 328,874,223
EXERCICIO (SE
POSITIVO)
1B TOTAIS 410,583,325 2% TOTAIS 410,583,325
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

#1352 52 H &%
—E2-mE+=-A=t-A

Inventario De Participacoes Financeiras

EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2014

FREBRE =t IREEE Baokt
Tipo/Sector de actividade Nome Valor do balanco Valor percentual
P
MOP
BRE BRI —AEBEIE 548
Accbes/Quotas por sector de
actividade
RIT - R REMITE B = RIBER AR 24,891,152 12.00%
Bancos, seguros e outros servicos ~ Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung
Hang, S.A.R.L.
o= ASRRROARAR 10,119,254 10.50%
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung
Hang-Vida, S.A.
&t TOTAIS 35,010,406

RIBREFSRBFEENES L TRGEZAS
Quadro a publicar ao dbrigo do artigo 75°. do R.J.S.F.
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BB ER LR

IFRS Comparisons

AT ZEETBERRBEBRMFRITRES
25/20055% 1T BUE AR FT A8 10 2 CR P81 765 & 48
AINVREL - CRPIFMI TSRS 2R REEFARL
HEERETERREEEe AN - RITBUEREMB
A BB B 75 3R 5 2E BN Y 4B RK © ARTT N8 AL
B — DR RRC BRI 75 R 5 2 BI DR E M AS | A%
HISHRE - ERRAERCRPIMISIRE ARk
(EIR B a5 2R ) ¥ AR172 2014512 A31H
IEHRFBRAREEER LW EEAEE -

The Bank’s statutory financial statements were prepared in accordance
with Macau Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS"”) as set out
in Administrative Regulation no. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region. MFRS were constituted by the direct adoption of
certain International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) effective at
the time of enactment of the Administrative Regulation. The Bank also
prepares a separate set of audited financial statements in accordance
with IFRS. The directors consider that there is no significant difference
between the adopting of MFRS or IFRS on the Bank’s financial position and
operating results for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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S1T—8

List of Branches

BT
HREDT
AEH AT
HBDIT
ROBST
BlofT
Bt SEDT
WEDT
R DT
HORDT
EREEDT

RFEDIT

BKEFREHD 1T

B IR24155
RIMEIEMA3NHD
== S 85
EFNEZBI19-2158
B8R HK3295C-F

B A B B Fe L 13385k
B S E295AM T

WEE N\EHEEIER 1955
B T75-795%
FIOEAREEES2865H T
REKXGEERBAE2ZEAL

RPTEIMNA S #309-3155%
SEIEE S AR DR
AT R R N H7356-36657 53
FEeXE
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Head Office

Ho Lan Un Branch
Hong Kai Si Branch
San Kiu Branch

Hak Sa Van Branch
Toi San Branch

Kou Tei Vu Kai Branch
lao Hon Branch

Ho Pin San Kai Branch
San Hau On Branch
StarWorld Hotel

Branch

Fai Chi Kei Branch

Flower City Branch

241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro

3D Avenida do Conselheiro Ferreira de Almeida
85 Avenida Horta e Costa

19-21 Estrada de Adolfo Loureiro

32C-F Estrada de Marginal do Hipodromo

338 Avenida de A.T. Barbosa

29A Rua Pedro Coutinho R/C

195 Rua Oito do Bairro lao Hon

75-79 Rua Almirante Sergio

286 Alameda Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao R/C
Shop A, Level 2 of StarWorld Hotel, Avenida de
Amizade

Avenida do Conselheiro Borja Nos. 309-315,
Mayfair Garden Bloco 5D R/C

356-366, Rua de Evora, Edif. Lei Fung, Taipa
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